### संख्या भा.आ.प.: 4(3)/ 2018-मेडि/ <u>भारतीय आयुर्विज्ञान परिषद्</u> <u>नई दिल्ली</u> स्नातकोत्तर चिकित्सा शिक्षा सामिति

सेक्टर-8, पॉकेट-14, द्वारका, नई दिल्ली स्थित परिषद् के कार्यालय में 12.06.2018 को प्रात: 10.30 बजे हुए स्नन्नकोत्तर चिकित्सा शिक्षा समिति की बैठक का कार्यवृत्त

उपस्थित:

1	डॉ. एस.बी. सिवाच	अध्यक्ष,
		पूर्व निदेशक, पंडित बी डी शर्मा पीजीआई,
		रोहतक, हरियाणा
2	डॉ. दत्तेश्वर होता	प्रोफेसर व विभागाध्यक्ष,
		एससीबी मेडिकल कॉलेज एंड हॉस्पिटल,
1	C.0	कटक, ओडिशा
3	डॉ. धुब ज्योति बोरा	प्रधानाचार्य-सह-मुख्य अधीक्षक,
		जोरहाट मेडिकल कॉलेज एंड हॉस्पिटल,
	20	जोरहाट (असम)
4	डॉ. के एस शर्मा	निदेशक अकादमिक,
		निदेशक, एजुकेशन (टीएमसी) एंड
		प्रोफेस्सर एंड विभागाध्यक्ष,
0	C	डिपार्टमेंट ऑफ एंस्थिशिया,
	39	टाटा मैमॉरियल सैंटर, मुंबई
5	डॉ. (श्रीमती) रानी भास्करन	अध्यक्ष,
	2.8	ट्रावंकोर-कौचीन मेडिकल कॉसिल,
		तिरूअन्नतपुरम
6	डॉ. वोरा नितिन सुमनचंद्रा	डीन,
		जीएमईआरएस मेडिकल कॉलेज सोला,
		नजदीक न्यू गुजरात हाई कोर्ट, सोला, एस.जी. हाईवे,
		अहमदाबाद, गुजरात-380061

डॉ. राजेन्द्र वाबले, संयुक्त सचिव

स्नातकोत्तर चिकित्सा शिक्षा समिति के अध्यक्ष महोदय ने इस बैठक में सभी सदस्यों का स्वागत किया है।

स्नातकोत्तर चिकित्सा शिक्षा समिति के सदस्य डॉ. भानु प्रकाश दुबे, डॉ. दिलीप गोविंदराव म्हेसेकर, डॉ. राजा बाबू पंवार, से अनुपस्थिति के लिए अवकाश आवेदन प्राप्त हुआ।

#### No. MCI-4(3)/2018-Med./

#### MEDICAL COUNCIL OF INDIA

#### POSTGRADUATE MEDICAL EDUCATION COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting of the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee held on **12<sup>th</sup> June, 2018 at 10.30 A.M**. in the Council Office, Sector-8, Pocket-14, Dwarka, New Delhi.

#### Present:

1.	Dr. S.B. Siwach	Chairman,
		Former Director, Pandit B D Sharma PGI,
		Rohtak, Haryana
2.	Dr. Datteswar Hota	Professor & HoD,
		SCB Medical College & Hospital, Cuttack,
		Orissa
3.	Dr. Dhruba Jyoti Borah	Principal-cum-Chief Suptd.,
		Jorhat Medical College & Hospital,
1		Jorhat (Assam).
4.	Dr. K S Sharma	Director Academics,
		Director, Edu. (TMC) & Professor & HoD,
		Deptt. of Anaesthesia, Tata Memorial
		Centre, Mumbai
5.	Dr. (Mrs.) Rani Bhaskaran	President,
		Travancore-Cochin Medical Council,
		Thiruvananthapuram
6.	Dr. Vora Nitin Sumanchandra	Dean,
		GMERS Medical College Sola, Near New
10	col	Gujarat High Court, Sola, S.G. Highway,
		Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380061
5.	Dr. (Mrs.) Rani Bhaskaran	Jorhat (Assam). Director Academics, Director, Edu. (TMC) & Professor & HoD, Deptt. of Anaesthesia, Tata Memorial Centre, Mumbai President, Travancore-Cochin Medical Council, Thiruvananthapuram Dean, GMERS Medical College Sola, Near New Gujarat High Court, Sola, S.G. Highway,

#### Dr. Rajendra Wabale, Joint Secretary

The Chairman welcomed the members of the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee.

Leave of absence was received from Dr. Bhanu Prakash Dubey, Dr. Deelip Govindrao Mhaisekar & Dr. Raja Babu Panwar, Member(s), Postgraduate Medical Education Committee.

#### 1. <u>Minutes of the last meeting of the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee</u> <u>– confirmation of.</u>

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee confirmed the minutes of the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee meeting held on 29/05/2018.

#### 2. <u>Minutes of the last meeting of the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee</u> <u>– action taken thereon.</u>

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee noted the Action Taken Report on the minutes of the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee meeting held on 29/05/2018.

#### 3. Increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (22/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (22/05/2018) and noted the following:-

- 1. Dr. Sudhirkumar M. Shandilya, Professor, appeared in MCI assessment in April, 2017 in other medical college. Hence cannot be considered. Resultantly, Unit-I left without an Assoc.Prof.
- 2. Total number of Major Operations has decreased from 4,998 in 2015 to 4,379 in 2017.
- 3. Total number of Minor Operations has decreased from 6,152 in 2015 to 4,687 in 2017.
- 4. Promotion of Dr. Vamsi Kondreddi, Assoc. Prof. is not as per regulations. He was promoted on 01.07.2015 after the cut off date. He has only 1 publication against the required of 2.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20.

#### 4. Increase of seats in MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (22/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (22/05/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from <u>5(Five) to 7(Seven)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

#### 5. Increase of seats in MD(Anaesthesiology) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (24/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Anaesthesiology) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (24/05/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Anaesthesiology) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from <u>6(Six) to 10(Ten)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

#### 6. Increase of seats in MS(Obstetrics & Gynaecology) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (23/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Obstetrics & Gynaecology) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (23/05/2018) and noted the following:-

- 1. Promotion of Dr. Anuradha, Assoc.Prof. is not as per regulations. She was promoted on 01.12.2017 after the cut off date without any publications.
- 2. Information regarding faculty appeared in other medical colleges in MCI assessment has not been provided. The column has been deleted.
- 3. There was NIL Major & NIL Minor Obstetric Operation on day of assessment.
- 4. Total number of Major Operations has decreased from 2,316 in 2015 to 1,942 in 2017.
- 5. Total number of Minor Operations has decreased from 4,526 in 2015 to 3,583 in 2017.
- 6. Total number of Operative Vaginal Deliveries has decreased from 685 in 2015 to 555 in 2017.
- 7. Attendance at Specialty clinics like Gynaec Endocrine clinic, Cancer clinic is very low: 2-3 cases & 5-6 cases/clinic.
- 8. ART is not available.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MS(Obstetrics & Gynaecology) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20.

#### 7. Increase of seats in MD(General Medicine) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (23/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(General Medicine) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (23/05/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(General Medicine) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from **12(Twelve) to 14(Fourteen)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

#### 8. Increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (23/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (23/05/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from **8(Eight) to 10(Ten)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

#### 9. Increase of seats in MD(Respiratory Medicine) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (22/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Respiratory Medicine) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (22/05/2018) and noted the following:-

- 1. Maximum permissible seats are 5 (3 in Unit-I and 2 in Unit-II). There are already 5 seats. No further increase can be given. Unit-II, has only one Assoc.Prof., who is a PG Teacher.
- 2. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Govt. not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MD(Respiratory Medicine) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20.

#### 10. Increase of seats in MD(Pathology) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (24/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Pathology) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (24/05/2018) and noted the following:-

- 1. Workload of Fluid Cytology has decreased from 8,724 in 2015 to 8,194 in 2017.
- 2. Workload of FNAC (Direct) from patients within the hospital has decreased from 8,497 in 2015 to 8,053 in 2017.
- 3. Workload of FNAC (CT guided) has decreased from 287 in 2015 to 264 in 2017.
- 4. Workload of FNAC (USG guided) has decreased from 546 in 2015 to 519 in 2017.
- There is variation in data of clinical material of previous 3 years as shown at Item § 5 of Summary & Item § 15 (b) of Departmental Information in SAF Part II. There is Data Mismatch.
- 6. Equipment like HPLC, Cytospin are not available.
- 7. Workload of TT investigation is NIL.
- 8. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Govt. not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MD(Pathology) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20.

#### 11. Increase of seats in MD(Dermatology, Venerology & Leprosy) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (21/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Dermatology, Venerology & Leprosy) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (21/05/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Dermatology, Venerology & Leprosy) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from <u>2(Two) to 4(Four)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

#### 12. Increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Guntur Medical College, Guntur under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (23/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Guntur Medical College, Guntur under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (23/05/2018) and noted the following:-

- 1. Dr. G. Vara Prasad, Professor was not available on the day of assessment. Resultantly, Unit-I has no Assoc.Prof.
- 2. The Institute is permitted for 200 UG seats for which 4 Units are required; however as only 3 Units are available, there is deficit of 1 Unit.
- 3. Deficiency of faculty: (a) Assoc. Prof.: 1.
- 4. Unit 1 has no Asso. Prof.; resultantly faculty complement is incomplete & it cannot be considered as PG Unit.
- 5. There were only 3 Minor Operations on day of assessment.
- 6. Details of patients in ICU are not provided.
- 7. Departmental Library has 71 books.
- 8. Space for faculty & office is inadequate.
- 9. Residential Quarters for Staff are not available.
- 10. In the column "Stipend paid by Institution to Residents", it is stated "NIL". It needs to be clarified whether stipend is paid to Residents & if so, @ what rates.
- 11. Laundry is insufficient.
- 12. MRD: It is not fully computerized.
- 13. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Govt. not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Guntur Medical College, Guntur under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20.

#### 13. Increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Guntur Medical College, Guntur under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Guntur Medical College, Guntur under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25/05/2018) and noted the following:-

- 1. Unit IV has only 2 faculty present on day of assessment; hence it cannot be considered as PG Unit.
- 2. Promotion of Dr. P. Yashodhara, Professor, is not as per regulations. She was promoted on 06.09.2015 after the cut off date without any publications.
- 3. OPD attendance upto 2 p.m. on day of assessment was only 91.
- 4. Bed Occupancy at 10 a.m. on day of assessment was 72 %.
- 5. In NICU, a few beds had 3 patients which is a potentially serious hazard.
- 6. MRI workload for the entire hospital was only 4 on day of assessment.
- 7. Endoscopy, Dialysis, Bronchoscopy services are not available in the department.
- 8. Residential Quarters for Staff are not available.
- 9. The column "Stipend paid by Institution to Residents" is left blank; it needs to be clarified whether stipend is paid to Residents & if so, @ what rates.
- 10. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Govt. not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Guntur Medical College, Guntur under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20.

#### 14. Increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Guntur Medical College, Guntur under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (22/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Guntur Medical College, Guntur under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (22/05/2018) and noted the following:-

- 1. Institute is permitted for 200 UG intake which requires 7 Units & 21 faculty. Hence deficiency of faculty is: (a) Assoc. Prof.: 3; (b) Asst. Prof.: 2.
- 2. Dr. S. Sriharsha is appointed as Asst. Prof. on 01/08/2017 but does not have experience of 1 y as Senior Resident before appointment; hence not qualified to hold the post.
- 3. Dr. J. Prabhakar is shown as "Professor" in the column of "Designation" in the faculty table; however in the column of "Experience", it is shown as "Assoc. Prof." w.e.f. 07/09/2012 till date. No explanation is given for this dichotomy.

- 4. Dr. Y. Rajya Lakshmi is shown as "Assoc. Prof." in the column of "Designation" in the faculty table; however in the column of "Experience", it is shown as "Asst. Prof." w.e.f. 13/10/2005 till date. No explanation is given for this dichotomy.
- 5. Promotion of Dr. M. Bhagwan Naik, Professor is not as per regulations. He was promoted in October, 2015 without any publications. All his publications are after his promotion.
- 6. Declaration Form of Dr. R. Bhavani Rao, Professor & Dr. J. Kishore, Professor have been not submitted. It means they were not present on the day of assessment.
- 7. Unit I Assoc. Prof. was absent on day of assessment; resultantly faculty complement is incomplete & it cannot be considered as PG Unit.
- 8. Unit II has only 2 faculty; hence it cannot be considered as PG Unit.
- 9. Units III, VII have only 1 faculty each & are headed by Asst. Prof.; hence they cannot be considered as teaching Units.
- 10. Unit IV has only 2 faculty; hence it cannot be considered as PG Unit.
- 11. Shortage of Senior Residents: 2.
- 12. Senior Residents in Unit I, II, III, VI were absent on day of assessment.
- 13. Details of Qualification& Experience of Senior Residents have not been provided in the faculty table.
- 14. Specialty clinic like Surgical Oncology clinic is not run.
- 15. Recovery room space is inadequate & is not in use.
- 16. Space for faculty & office is inadequate.
- 17. MRI workload for the entire hospital was only 4 on day of assessment.
- 18. OPD has decreased from 24750 in 2016 to 24653 in 2017.
- 19. Residential Quarters for Staff are not available.
- 20. In the column "Stipend paid by Institution to Residents", it is stated "NIL". It needs to be clarified whether stipend is paid to Residents & if so, @ what rates.
- 21. Space for office is inadequate.
- 22. Data of PG teaching Programme is not kept properly.
- 23. Non-teaching staff is inadequate.
- 24. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Govt. not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Guntur Medical College, Guntur under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20.

#### 15. Increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (17/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (17/05/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from **12(Twelve) to 18(Eighteen)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of

the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

#### 16. Increase of seats in MD(Psychiatry) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (22/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Psychiatry) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (22/05/2018) and noted the following:-

- 1. Dr. Ch. Laxmi Rajesh is promoted as Assoc. Prof. after cut-off date; however in the column "Benefit of Publications" in the faculty table, it is stated "No" implying NIL publication against requirement of 2; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 2. There is one Unit of 40 beds and maximum permissible seats are four, which are already given to the college. Now, no further increase is permissible.
- 3. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Govt. not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MD(Psychiatry) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20.

#### 17. Increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25/05/2018) and noted the following:-

- 1. There are 4 unit and 30 beds of each and maximum permissible seats are 12 only. Already 12 seats are there. No further increase can be given.
- 2. Clinical material is very limited and majority of the indoor patients were such that they did not require admission.
- 3. Promotion of Dr. Pratima, Assoc.Prof. is not as per regulations. She was promoted on 18.04.2017 after the cut off date. All her publications are after her promotion.
- 4. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Govt. not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20.

#### 18. Increase of seats in MD(General Medicine) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (17/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(General Medicine) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (17/05/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(General Medicine) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from **12(Twelve) to 18(Eighteen)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

#### 19. Increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (18/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (18/05/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from **13(Thirteen) to 14(Fourteen)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

## 20. <u>Starting of MD(Microbiology) course at Rajiv Gandhi Institute of Medical Sciences, Ongole, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25/05/2018) for Starting of MD(Microbiology) course at Rajiv Gandhi Institute of Medical Sciences, Ongole, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25/05/2018) and noted the following:-

- 1. Equipment like Laminar Flow Vent is not available.
- 2. The column "Stipend paid by Institution to Residents" is left blank; it needs to be clarified whether stipend is paid to Residents & if so, @ what rates.
- 3. Experience details of faculty are not provided in faculty table without which their eligibility cannot be decided.
- 4. All 3 faculty have been transferred to this college only during the last 1 or 2 months.
- 5. Faculty table is not signed by any of the faculty members.
- 6. There is no Tutor. Date of joining of none of them has been given in the faculty table.
- 7. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Govt. not to grant letter of permission for starting of MD(Microbiology) course at Rajiv Gandhi Institute of Medical Sciences, Ongole, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20.

#### 21. <u>Starting of MD(Pathology) course at Rajiv Gandhi Institute of Medical</u> <u>Sciences, Ongole, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health</u> <u>Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year</u> <u>2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (17/05/2018) for Starting of MD(Pathology) course at Rajiv Gandhi Institute of Medical Sciences, Ongole, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (17/05/2018) and noted the following:-

- 1. Deficiency of faculty: (a) Assoc. Prof.: 1; (b) Asst. Prof.: 1; (c) Tutors: 3.
- 2. Details of Cadrewise experience of faculty are not provided in the faculty table.
- 3. Workload of CT guided FNAC & of USG guided FNAC is NIL.
- 4. Equipment like Microwave, HPLC, Cytospin, PT & APT Analyzers are not available.
- 5. Facilities for Frozen Section, Histochemistry, Immunohistochemistry are not available.
- 6. Workload of TT investigation is NIL.
- 7. Pathological post-mortems are not performed.
- In the column "Stipend paid by Institution to Residents", it is stated "Not Applicable". It needs to be clarified whether stipend is to be paid to Residents & if so, @ what rates.
- 9. MRI is not available.
- 10. No date of joining of both the Tutors have been provided in faculty table. Hence they cannot be considered.
- 11. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for starting of of MD(Pathology) course at Rajiv Gandhi Institute of Medical Sciences, Ongole, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20.

#### 22. <u>Starting of MD(Community Medicine) course at Rajiv Gandhi Institute of</u> <u>Medical Sciences, Srikakulam under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences,</u> <u>Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (21/05/2018) for Starting of MD(Community Medicine) course at Rajiv Gandhi Institute of Medical Sciences, Srikakulam under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (21/05/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Starting of MD(Community Medicine) course at Rajiv Gandhi Institute of Medical Sciences, Srikakulam under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 restricting the number of admissions to <u>3(Three)</u> students per year, till the first batch admitted appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

#### 23. Increase of seats in MD(Anaesthesiology) course at Sri Venkateswara Medical College, Tirupati under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (24/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Anaesthesiology) course at Sri Venkateswara Medical College, Tirupati under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (24/05/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Anaesthesiology) course at Sri Venkateswara Medical College, Tirupati under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from <u>8(Eight) to 11(Eleven)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

#### 24. Increase of seats in MD(Respiratory Medicine) course at Sri Venkateswara Medical College, Tirupati under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Respiratory Medicine) course at Sri Venkateswara Medical College, Tirupati under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25/05/2018) and noted the following:-

- 1. Details of experience as Resident in respect of Dr. K. Siva Prasad & Dr. M. Revathi, both Senior Residents, are not provided; hence it cannot be verified whether they are qualified to hold the post or not.
- 2. Equipment like DLCO is not functional.
- 3. Departmental Library has 72 books.
- 4. MRI is not available.
- 5. On assessment day OPD was 55, which is bare minimum to start the course.
- 6. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(Respiratory Medicine) course at Sri Venkateswara Medical College, Tirupati under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20

#### 25. <u>Veer Narmad South Gujarat University- Renewal of recognition of</u> <u>MD/MS(OBG) qualification for 05 seats and DGO qualification for 08 seats in</u> <u>respect of students being trained at Government Medical College, Surat.</u>

Read: the Assessment Report (24.04.2018 (for Degree) & 25.04.2018 (for Diploma)) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Government Medical College, Surat for purpose of Renewal of recognition of MD/MS(OBG) qualification for 05 seats and DGO qualification for 08 seats granted by Veer Narmad South Gujarat University.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (24.04.2018 (for Degree) & 25.04.2018 (for Diploma)) and decided to recommend not to renew the recognition of MD/MS(OBG) qualification for 05 seats and DGO qualification for 08 seats granted by Veer Narmad South Gujarat University in respect of students being trained at Government Medical College, Surat because of the following:-

- 1. Dr. Ragini Verma was promoted as Professor after cut-off date; however in the column "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table, it is stated "No" implying NIL publication against requirement of 4; hence her promotion is not as per Regulations & she cannot be considered. She also appeared in MCI assessment at Vadodara in May, 2017.
- 2. Dr. Dhwani Desai is promoted as Assoc. Prof. after cut-off date; however there is only 1 research publication against requirement of 2; hence her promotion is not as per Regulations & she cannot be considered. Further, in the column of "Designation" in the faculty table, it is shown as "Asst. Prof."; however in the column of experience, it is shown as "Asso. Prof." w.e.f 10/03/2015 till date. No explanation is given for this dichotomy.
- 3. Shortage of Senior Resident: 1.
- 4. There was NIL Major Obstetric Operation on day of assessment.
- 5. Total number of Operative Vaginal Deliveries has decreased from 81 in 2015 to 39 in 2017.
- 6. ART service is not fully available.
- 7. Minor operation decreased from 2369 in 2016 to 2312 in 2017.
- 8. Dr. Lalit Kapadia, is not shown working beyond October, 2017. He is shown to be working in B.J. Medical College, Ahmedabad till 2017.
- 9. Dr. Anjani Shrivastava, Assoc.Prof. is last shown working at GMERS Patan. She is not shown working in this institution.
- 10. Unit-III, has only 2 faculty.

- 11. Name of Dr. Nilam Prajapati, Asst.Prof. has been entered by hand. However, she appeared in MCI assessment in October, 2017 at Bhavnagar. Hence she cannot be considered.
- 12. Bed occupancy in HDU was 60% on the day of assessment.
- 13. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the assessment report.

Admissions done (if any) against these seats i.e. MD/MS(OBG) for 05 seats and DGO for 08 seats till renewal of their recognition will be irregular/ illegal and not in accordance with MCI regulations (notified with prior permission of Central Government vide notification dated 21/07/2009) and will not be recognized. As per provisions of the Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000, failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admissions to the concerned Post Graduate Course. This is also clarified in the letter of recognition granted u/s 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956 issued for these seats, which reads as under:

"...the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course."

In case, the college authorities desire to submit compliance, same should be received in this office preferably within four weeks of issue of this letter but definitely, prior to next admission so that the matter of recognition can be finally decided. If no compliance is received within this period or compliance/ compliance verification is found unsatisfactory, it will result in stoppage of admission to the postgraduate course against the above mentioned seats.

#### 26. <u>Veer Narmad South Gujarat University- Renewal of recognition of MD(Social</u> <u>& Preventive Medicine / Community Medicine) qualification for 07 seats in</u> respect of students being trained at Government Medical College, Surat.

Read: the Assessment Report (24.04.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Government Medical College, Surat for purpose of Renewal of recognition of MD(Social & Preventive Medicine / Community Medicine) qualification for 07 seats granted by Veer Narmad South Gujarat University.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (24.04.2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Government that the recognition of MD(Social & Preventive Medicine / Community Medicine) qualification for 07 seats granted by Veer Narmad South Gujarat University in respect of students being trained at Government Medical College, Surat be renewed.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

### 27. <u>Veer Narmad South Gujarat University- Renewal of recognition of MD(General Medicine) qualification for 14 seats in respect of students being trained at Government Medical College, Surat.</u>

Read: the Assessment Report (26.04.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Government Medical College, Surat for purpose of Renewal of recognition of MD(General Medicine) qualification for 14 seats granted by Veer Narmad South Gujarat University.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (26.04.2018) and decided to recommend not to renew the recognition of MD(General Medicine) qualification for 14 seats granted by Veer Narmad South Gujarat University in respect of students being trained at Government Medical College, Surat because of the following facts:-

- 1. Institute is permitted for 250 seats for which 8 Units are required; as only 6 Units are available, there is deficit of 2 Units.
- 2. Accordingly, there is deficiency of faculty: (a) Assoc. Prof.: 1; (b) Asst. Prof.: 3.
- 3. Promotion of Dr. Tinkal Patel, Professor, is not as per regulations. She was promoted on 05.06.2017 after the cut off date. She has only 2 publications against the requirement of 4.
- In case of Dr. P.Z. Wadia, Professor, experience details as Asst.Prof. & Assoc.Prof. are not given in faculty table without which his eligibility cannot be decided.
- 5. Dr. Ashvin Vasava, Assoc.Prof. is last shown working at Vadodara. Resultantly, there is no other Assoc.Prof. in Unit-V.
- 6. There are 13 faculty members (pg.39 table -6) who appeared in MCI assessment in other medical college in the year 2017-18. Hence they cannot be considered.
- 7. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the assessment report.

Admissions done (if any) against these seats i.e. 14 seats till renewal of their recognition will be irregular/ illegal and not in accordance with MCI regulations (notified with prior permission of Central Government vide notification dated 21/07/2009) and will not be recognized. As per provisions of the Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000, failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admissions to the concerned Post Graduate Course. This is also clarified in the letter of recognition granted u/s 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956 issued for these seats, which reads as under:

"...the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course."

In case, the college authorities desire to submit compliance, same should be received in this office preferably within four weeks of issue of this letter but definitely, prior to next admission so that the matter of recognition can be finally decided. If no compliance is received within this period or compliance/ compliance verification is found unsatisfactory, it will result in stoppage of admission to the postgraduate course against the above mentioned seats.

#### 28. <u>Veer Narmad South Gujarat University- Renewal of recognition of</u> <u>MD(Pathology) qualification for 10 seats in respect of students being trained</u> <u>at Government Medical College, Surat.</u>

Read: the Assessment Report (25.04.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Government Medical College, Surat for purpose of Renewal of recognition of MD(Pathology) qualification for 10 seats granted by Veer Narmad South Gujarat University.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (25.04.2018) and decided to recommend not to renew the recognition of MD(Pathology) qualification for 10 seats granted by Veer Narmad South Gujarat University in respect of students being trained at Government Medical College, Surat because of the following facts:-

- 1. Workload of CT guided FNAC was NIL in 2017.
- 2. Workload of USG guided FNAC was only 29 in 2017.
- 3. Equipment like Microwave is not functional.
- 4. Pathological post-mortems are not performed.
- 5. Workload of TT investigation is NIL.
- 6. There are 7 faculty members who have appeared in MCI assessment at other medical colleges in the year 2017. Hence they cannot be considered.
- 7. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the assessment report.

Admissions done (if any) against these seats i.e. 10 seats till renewal of their recognition will be irregular/ illegal and not in accordance with MCI regulations (notified with prior permission of Central Government vide notification dated 21/07/2009) and will not be recognized. As per provisions of the Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000, failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admissions to the concerned Post Graduate Course. This is also clarified in the letter of recognition granted u/s 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956 issued for these seats, which reads as under:

"...the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course."

In case, the college authorities desire to submit compliance, same should be received in this office preferably within four weeks of issue of this letter but definitely, prior to next admission so that the matter of recognition can be finally decided. If no compliance is received within this period or compliance/ compliance verification is found unsatisfactory, it will result in stoppage of admission to the postgraduate course against the above mentioned seats.

#### 29. <u>Veer Narmad South Gujarat University- Renewal of recognition of DCP</u> <u>qualification for 03 seats in respect of students being trained at Government</u> <u>Medical College, Surat.</u>

Read: the Assessment Report (25-26.04.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Government Medical College, Surat for purpose of renewal of recognition of DCP qualification for 03 seats granted by Veer Narmad South Gujarat University.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (25-26.04.2018) and decided to recommend not to renew the recognition of DCP qualification for 03 seats granted by Veer Narmad South Gujarat University in respect of students being trained at Government Medical College, Surat because of the following facts:-

- 1. Workload of CT guided FNAC was NIL in 2017.
- 2. Workload of USG guided FNAC was only 29 in 2017.
- 3. Equipment like Microwave is not functional.
- 4. Pathological post-mortems are not performed.
- 5. Workload of TT investigation is NIL.
- 6. There are 7 faculty members who have appeared in MCI assessment at other medical colleges in the year 2017. Hence they cannot be considered.
- 7. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the assessment report.

Admissions done (if any) against these seats i.e. 03 seats till renewal of their recognition will be irregular/ illegal and not in accordance with MCI regulations (notified with prior permission of Central Government vide notification dated 21/07/2009) and will not be recognized. As per provisions of the Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000, failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admissions to the concerned Post Graduate Course. This is also clarified in the letter of recognition granted u/s 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956 issued for these seats, which reads as under:

"...the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course."

In case, the college authorities desire to submit compliance, same should be received in this office preferably within four weeks of issue of this letter but definitely, prior to next admission so that the matter of recognition can be finally decided. If no compliance is received within this period or compliance/ compliance verification is found unsatisfactory, it will result in stoppage of admission to the postgraduate course against the above mentioned seats.

# 30. <u>Veer Narmad South Gujarat University- Renewal of recognition of MD(Anaesthesiology) qualification for 08 seats and DA qualification for 03 seats in respect of students being trained at Government Medical College, Surat.</u>

Read: the Assessment Report (26.04.2018 (for degree) and 27.04.2018 (for diploma)) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Government Medical College, Surat for purpose of Renewal of recognition of MD(Anaesthesiology) qualification for 08 seats and DA qualification for 03 seats granted by Veer Narmad South Gujarat University.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (26.04.2018 (for degree) and 27.04.2018 (for diploma)) and decided to recommend not to renew the recognition of MD(Anaesthesiology) qualification for 08 seats and DA qualification for 03 seats granted by Veer Narmad South Gujarat University in respect of students being trained at Government Medical College, Surat because of the following facts:-

- 1. Dr. Neeta Abhay Kavishvar, Professor, is last shown working till 29.08.2012. No further experience details given in faculty table.
- 2. Dr. Atul Vyas, Assoc.Prof. is last shown working upto 30.09.2017 at B.J. Medical College, Ahmedabad. No further experience details given in faculty table.
- 3. Dr. Hemangini M Patel, Asst.Prof. is last shown working till 23.05.2016 at Valsad.
- 4. Details of external examiner are not provided in SAF Part-III.
- 5. 10 faculty members have appeared in MCI assessment at other medical college during 2017. Hence they cannot be considered.
- 6. CT Scan is not functional.
- 7. MRI is owned by a private entity; terms of MOU are not provided; this needs to be clarified.
- 8. Equipments are inadequate as detailed in the report.
- 9. There is only one multipara monitor was available in casualty. Other monitors viz. pulse mximeter etc are very less in number. Equipments for difficult intubation are not available in casualty.
- 10. Only 1 invasive monitor (IBP monitor) available in 18 OTs. It is very inadequate.
- 11. Medical Record Section is only computerized. ICD 10 classification is not used for routine discharged patients due to lack of trained manpower.
- 12. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the assessment report.

Admissions done (if any) against these seats i.e. 08 Degree and 03 Diploma seats till renewal of their recognition will be irregular/ illegal and not in accordance with MCI regulations (notified with prior permission of Central Government vide notification dated 21/07/2009) and will not be recognized. As per provisions of the Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000, failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admissions to the concerned Post Graduate Course. This is also clarified in the letter of recognition granted u/s 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956 issued for these seats, which reads as under:

"...the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course."

In case, the college authorities desire to submit compliance, same should be received in this office preferably within four weeks of issue of this letter but definitely, prior to next admission so that the matter of recognition can be finally decided. If no compliance is received within this period or compliance/ compliance verification is found unsatisfactory, it will result in stoppage of admission to the postgraduate course against the above mentioned seats.

#### 31. <u>Guru Gobind Singh Indraprastha University, New Delhi- Renewal of</u> recognition of MD(Microbiology) qualification for 05 seats in respect of students being trained at Vardhman Mahavir Medical College & Postgraduate Institute Safdarjung Hospital, New Delhi.

Read: the Assessment Report (01.05.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Vardhman Mahavir Medical College & Postgraduate Institute Safdarjung Hospital, New Delhi for purpose of Renewal of recognition of MD(Microbiology) qualification for 05 seats granted by Guru Gobind Singh Indraprastha University, New Delhi.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (01.05.2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Government that the recognition of MD(Microbiology) qualification for 05 seats granted by Guru Gobind Singh Indraprastha University, New Delhi in respect of students being trained at Vardhman Mahavir Medical College & Postgraduate Institute Safdarjung Hospital, New Delhi be renewed.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

#### Guru Gobind Singh Indraprastha University, New Delhi- Renewal of 32. recognition of MS(OBG) qualification for 20 seats in respect of students being trained at Vardhman Mahavir Medical College & Postgraduate Institute Safdarjung Hospital, New Delhi.

Read: the Assessment Report (01.05.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Vardhman Mahavir Medical College & Postgraduate Institute Safdarjung Hospital, New Delhi for purpose of Renewal of recognition of MS(OBG) qualification for 20 seats granted by Guru Gobind Singh Indraprastha University, New Delhi.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (01.05.2018) and decided to recommend not to renew the recognition of MS(OBG) qualification for 20 seats granted by Guru Gobind Singh Indraprastha University, New Delhi in respect of students being trained at Vardhman Mahavir Medical College & Postgraduate Institute Safdarjung Hospital, New Delhi because of the following facts:-

- There are 6 Units. Each Unit has 49 beds which is not as per Regulations.
  Faculty table is not signed by any faculty/Resident.
- 3. Dr. Anjali Dabral is promoted as Assoc. Prof. without any experience as Asst. Prof.; hence her promotion is not as per Regulations & she cannot be considered.
- 4. Dr. Saritha Shamsunder is promoted as Assoc. Prof. after cut-off date; however the column "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table is left blank implying NIL publication against requirement of 2; hence her promotion is not as per Regulations & she cannot be considered.
- 5. Dr. Garima Kapoor is promoted as Assoc. Prof. after cut-off date; however the column "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table is left blank implying NIL publication against requirement of 2; hence her promotion is not as per Regulations & she cannot be considered.
- 6. Dr. Bindu Bajaj, Assoc.Prof., is not eligible, she has been appointed directly Assoc.Prof. in 2016. She never worked as Asst.prof.. No details of her working in other capacities for giving equated teaching designation of Assoc.Prof. & Asst.Prof. provided in the faculty table.
- 7. There was nil Minor Obstetric Operation on day of assessment.
- 8. Details of External Examiners are not provided.
- 9. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the assessment report.

Admissions done (if any) against these seats i.e. 20 seats till renewal of their recognition will be irregular/ illegal and not in accordance with MCI regulations (notified with prior permission of Central Government vide notification dated 21/07/2009) and will not be recognized. As per provisions of the Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000, failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admissions to the concerned Post Graduate Course. This is also clarified in the letter of recognition granted u/s 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956 issued for these seats, which reads as under:

"...the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course."

In case, the college authorities desire to submit compliance, same should be received in this office preferably within four weeks of issue of this letter but definitely, prior to next admission so that the matter of recognition can be finally decided. If no compliance is received within this period or compliance/ compliance verification is found unsatisfactory, it will result in stoppage of admission to the postgraduate course against the above mentioned seats.

#### 33. <u>Guru Gobind Singh Indraprastha University, New Delhi- Renewal of</u> recognition of MD/MS(Ophthalmology) qualification for 07 seats in respect of students being trained at Vardhman Mahavir Medical College & Postgraduate Institute Safdarjung Hospital, New Delhi.

Read: the Assessment Report (01.05.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Vardhman Mahavir Medical College & Postgraduate Institute Safdarjung Hospital, New Delhi for purpose of Renewal of recognition of MD/MS(Ophthalmology) qualification for 07 seats granted by Guru Gobind Singh Indraprastha University, New Delhi.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (01.05.2018) and decided to recommend not to renew the recognition of MD/MS(Ophthalmology) qualification for 07 seats seats granted by Guru Gobind Singh Indraprastha University, New Delhi in respect of students being trained at Vardhman Mahavir Medical College & Postgraduate Institute Safdarjung Hospital, New Delhi because of the following facts:-

- 1. Bed Occupancy on day of assessment is 55 %.
- 2. Many Residents are staying out of campus.
- 3. Departmental Library has only 20 books.
- 4. On assessment day there were no major and minor operations performed.
- 5. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the assessment report.

Admissions done (if any) against these seats i.e. 07 seats till renewal of their recognition will be irregular/ illegal and not in accordance with MCI regulations (notified with prior permission of Central Government vide notification dated 21/07/2009) and will not be recognized. As per provisions of the Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000, failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admissions to the concerned Post Graduate Course. This is also clarified in the letter of recognition granted u/s 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956 issued for these seats, which reads as under:

"...the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course."

In case, the college authorities desire to submit compliance, same should be received in this office preferably within four weeks of issue of this letter but definitely,

prior to next admission so that the matter of recognition can be finally decided. If no compliance is received within this period or compliance/ compliance verification is found unsatisfactory, it will result in stoppage of admission to the postgraduate course against the above mentioned seats.

#### 34. <u>Guru Gobind Singh Indraprastha University, New Delhi- Renewal of</u> recognition of MD(Bio-Chemistry) qualification for 04 seats in respect of students being trained at Vardhman Mahavir Medical College & Postgraduate Institute Safdarjung Hospital, New Delhi.

Read: the Assessment Report (02.05.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Vardhman Mahavir Medical College & Postgraduate Institute Safdarjung Hospital, New Delhi for purpose of Renewal of recognition of MD(Bio-Chemistry) qualification for 04 seats granted by Guru Gobind Singh Indraprastha University, New Delhi.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (02.05.2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Government that the recognition of MD(Bio-Chemistry) qualification for 04 seats granted by Guru Gobind Singh Indraprastha University, New Delhi in respect of students being trained at Vardhman Mahavir Medical College & Postgraduate Institute Safdarjung Hospital, New Delhi be renewed.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

#### 35. <u>Guru Gobind Singh Indraprastha University, New Delhi- Renewal of</u> recognition of MD(General Medicine) qualification for 20 seats in respect of students being trained at Vardhman Mahavir Medical College & Postgraduate Institute Safdarjung Hospital, New Delhi.

Read: the Assessment Report (01.05.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Vardhman Mahavir Medical College & Postgraduate Institute Safdarjung Hospital, New Delhi for purpose of Renewal of recognition of MD(General Medicine) qualification for 20 seats granted by Guru Gobind Singh Indraprastha University, New Delhi.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (01.05.2018) and decided to recommend not to renew the recognition of MD(General Medicine) qualification for 20 seats granted by Guru Gobind Singh Indraprastha University, New Delhi in respect of students being trained at Vardhman Mahavir Medical College & Postgraduate Institute Safdarjung Hospital, New Delhi because of the following facts:-

- 1. Promotion of Dr. Arun Gogna, Prof., is not as per regulations. He was never Asst.Prof.
- 2. Promotion of Dr. Sumita Choudhary, Assoc.Prof., is not as per regulations. No details of her experience as Asst.Prof. has been given.
- 3. Promotion of Dr. N.S. Negi, Prof., is not as per regulations. He was never Asst.prof. and was appointed directly Assoc.prof.

- 4. Promotion of Dr. Neelima Jain, Professor, is not as per regulations. She never worked as Asst.Prof.
- 5. Promotion of Dr. Charanjit Singh, Professor, is not as per regulations. He never worked as Asst.Prof.
- 6. Faculty table not signed by any of the faculty members.
- 7. Details of beds occupied in ICUs on day of assessment are not provided.
- 8. Details of average number of cases attending Specialty clinics are not provided.
- 9. Equipment like Bronchoscope, TMT, Holter, Computerized PFT Equipment are not available in the department.
- 10. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the assessment report.

Admissions done (if any) against these seats i.e. 20 seats till renewal of their recognition will be irregular/ illegal and not in accordance with MCI regulations (notified with prior permission of Central Government vide notification dated 21/07/2009) and will not be recognized. As per provisions of the Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000, failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admissions to the concerned Post Graduate Course. This is also clarified in the letter of recognition granted u/s 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956 issued for these seats, which reads as under:

"...the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course."

In case, the college authorities desire to submit compliance, same should be received in this office preferably within four weeks of issue of this letter but definitely, prior to next admission so that the matter of recognition can be finally decided. If no compliance is received within this period or compliance/ compliance verification is found unsatisfactory, it will result in stoppage of admission to the postgraduate course against the above mentioned seats.

36. <u>Guru Gobind Singh Indraprastha University, New Delhi - Renewal of</u> recognition of MD(Radio Diagnosis/Radiology) qualification for 07 seats in respect of students being trained at Vardhman Mahavir Medical College & Postgraduate Institute Safdarjung Hospital, New Delhi.

Read: the Assessment Report (01.05.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Vardhman Mahavir Medical College & Postgraduate Institute Safdarjung Hospital, New Delhi for purpose of Renewal of recognition of MD(Radio Diagnosis/Radiology) qualification for 07 seats granted by Guru Gobind Singh Indraprastha University, New Delhi.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (01.05.2018) and decided to recommend not to renew the recognition of MD(Radio Diagnosis/Radiology) qualification for 07 seats granted by Guru Gobind Singh Indraprastha University, New Delhi in respect of students being trained at Vardhman Mahavir Medical College & Postgraduate Institute Safdarjung Hospital, New Delhi because of the following facts:-

- 1. Details of experience of some faculty have not been provided in the faculty table; hence it cannot be verified whether they are qualified to hold the post or not.
- 2. Dr. B.B. Thukral is promoted as Professor after cut-off date; however in the column "Benefit of publication" in faculty table, it is stated "No" implying NIL

research publication against requirement of 4; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.

- 3. Dr. Rohini Gupta is promoted as Professor after cut-off date; however in the column "Benefit of publication" in faculty table, it is stated "No" implying NIL research publication against requirement of 4; hence her promotion is not as per Regulations & she cannot be considered. Further, in the column of "Designation" in the faculty table, it is shown as "Assoc. Professor"; however in the column of "Experience", it is shown as "Professor: w.e.f. 10/11/2014 till date. No explanation is given for this dichotomy.
- 4. Dr. S.K. Bajaj is promoted as Asso. Prof. after cut-off date; however in the column "Benefit of publication" in faculty table, it is stated "No" implying NIL research publication against requirement of 2; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered. He never worked as Asst.Prof. and no details of his working in other capacities have been provided due to which he might have been given equated teaching designation of Assoc.Prof.
- 5. Promotion of Dr. Shabnam Bhandari Grover, Professor, is not as per regulations. No experience details as Asst.Prof. & Assoc.Prof. has been provided.
- 6. Promotion of Dr. Mahesh Kumar Mittal, Professor, is not as per regulations. He never worked as Asst.Prof.
- 7. Promotion of Dr. Yatish Agarwal, Professor, is not as per regulations. He never worked as Asst.Prof.
- 8. Promotion of Dr. Ranjan Chandra, Professor, is not as per regulations. No experience details as Asst.Prof. & Assoc.Prof. has been provided in the faculty table.
- 9. Promotion of Dr. Amita Malik, Professor, is not as per regulations. No experience details as Asst.Prof. & Assoc.Prof. has been provided in the faculty table.
- 10. Workload of CT guided FNAC is NIL on day of assessment as well as on randomly selected days.
- 11. Workload of DSA was NIL on day of assessment as well as on randomly selected days.
- 12. Workload of MRI is only 10 on day of assessment.
- 13. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the assessment report.

Admissions done (if any) against these seats i.e. 07 seats till renewal of their recognition will be irregular/ illegal and not in accordance with MCI regulations (notified with prior permission of Central Government vide notification dated 21/07/2009) and will not be recognized. As per provisions of the Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000, failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admissions to the concerned Post Graduate Course. This is also clarified in the letter of recognition granted u/s 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956 issued for these seats, which reads as under:

"...the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course."

In case, the college authorities desire to submit compliance, same should be received in this office preferably within four weeks of issue of this letter but definitely, prior to next admission so that the matter of recognition can be finally decided. If no compliance is received within this period or compliance/ compliance verification is found unsatisfactory, it will result in stoppage of admission to the postgraduate course against the above mentioned seats.

#### 37. <u>Gujarat University, Ahmedabad- Recognition of MD(Pathology) qualification</u> for 05 seats in respect of students being trained at Ahmedabad Municipal Coporation Medical Education Trust Medical College, Ahmedabad.

Read: the Assessment Report (21.05.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Ahmedabad Municipal Coporation Medical Education Trust Medical College, Ahmedabad for purpose of Recognition of MD(Pathology) qualification for 05 seats granted by Gujarat University, Ahmedabad.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (21.05.2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Government that MD(Pathology) qualification for 05 seats granted by Gujarat University, Ahmedabad in respect of students being trained at Ahmedabad Municipal Coporation Medical Education Trust Medical College, Ahmedabad be recognized and included in the 1st Schedule to the I.M.C. Act, 1956.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

#### 38. <u>BLDE University, Bijapur- Recognition of MD( Social & Preventive Medicine /</u> <u>Community Medicine) qualification against increased intake from 02 to 06</u> <u>seats in respect of students being trained at Shri B M Patil Medical College,</u> <u>Hospital & Research Centre, Bijapur.</u>

Read: the Assessment Report (22.05.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Shri B M Patil Medical College, Hospital & Research Centre, Bijapur for purpose of Recognition of MD( Social & Preventive Medicine / Community Medicine) qualification against increased intake from 02 to 06 seats granted by BLDE University, Bijapur.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (22.05.2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Government that MD( Social & Preventive Medicine / Community Medicine) qualification against increased intake from 02 to 06 seats granted by BLDE University, Bijapur in respect of students being trained at Shri B M Patil Medical College, Hospital & Research Centre, Bijapur be recognized and included in the 1st Schedule to the I.M.C. Act, 1956.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

#### 39. <u>Utkal University</u>, Orissa- Recognition of MD/MS(Anatomy) qualification against increased intake from 05 to 07 seats in respect of students being trained at SCB Medical College, Cuttack.

Read: the Assessment Report (21.05.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at SCB Medical College, Cuttack for purpose of Recognition of MD/MS(Anatomy) qualification against increased intake from 05 to 07 seats granted by Utkal University, Orissa.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (21.05.2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Government that MD/MS(Anatomy) qualification against increased intake from 05 to 07 seats granted by Utkal University, Orissa in respect of students being trained at SCB Medical College, Cuttack be recognized and included in the 1st Schedule to the I.M.C. Act, 1956.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

#### 40. <u>Utkal University, Orissa- Renewal of recognition of MD(DVL) qualification</u> increased from 04 to 05 seats in respect of students being trained at SCB Medical College, Cuttack.

Read: the Assessment Report (23.05.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at SCB Medical College, Cuttack for purpose of Renewal of recognition of MD(DVL) qualification increased from 04 to 05 seats granted by Utkal University, Orissa.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (23.05.2018) and decided to recommend not to renew the recognition of MD(DVL) qualification increased from 04 to 05 seats granted by Utkal University, Orissa in respect of students being trained at SCB Medical College, Cuttack because of the following facts:-

- 1. Bed Occupancy at 10 a.m. on day of assessment is 49 %. Average bed occupancy 23%.
- 2. SAF Part-III giving examination details have been left blank.
- 3. Workload of the following was grossly inadequate in 2017:
  - (a) Cryo procedures: 5;
  - (b) Skin Grafting procedures: 10;
  - (c) Nail Surgeries: 15;
  - (d) Chemical Peels: 25;
- 4. Attendance at Specialty clinics is not shown.
- 5. CPC is not held.
- 6. Total number of patients in OPD has decreased from 1,35,548 in 2015-2016 to 43,007 in last year.
- 7. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the assessment report.

Admissions done (if any) against these seats i.e. increased intake from 4 to 5 seats till renewal of their recognition will be irregular/ illegal and not in accordance with MCI regulations (notified with prior permission of Central Government vide notification dated 21/07/2009) and will not be recognized. As per provisions of the Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000, failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admissions to the concerned Post Graduate Course. This is also clarified in the letter of recognition granted u/s 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956 issued for these seats, which reads as under:

"...the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course."

In case, the college authorities desire to submit compliance, same should be received in this office preferably within four weeks of issue of this letter but definitely, prior to next admission so that the matter of recognition can be finally decided. If no compliance is received within this period or compliance/ compliance verification is found unsatisfactory, it will result in stoppage of admission to the postgraduate course against the above mentioned seats.

#### 41. Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada, Andhra Pradesh-Recognition of MD(Anaesthesiology) qualification against increased intake from 04 to 06 seats in respect of students being trained at Konaseema Institute of Medical Sciences & Research Foundation, Amalapuram.

Read: the Assessment Report (15.05.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Konaseema Institute of Medical Sciences & Research Foundation, Amalapuram for purpose of Recognition of MD(Anaesthesiology) qualfication against increased intake from 04 to 06 seats granted by Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada, Andhra Pradesh.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (15.05.2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Government that MD(Anaesthesiology) qualfication against increased intake from 04 to 06 seats granted by Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada, Andhra Pradesh in respect of students being trained at Konaseema Institute of Medical Sciences & Research Foundation, Amalapuram be recognized and included in the 1st Schedule to the I.M.C. Act, 1956.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

#### 42. Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada, Andhra Pradesh-Recognition of MD(General Medicine) qualification against increased intake from 06 to 08 seats in respect of students being trained at Konaseema Institute of Medical Sciences & Research Foundation, Amalapuram.

Read: the Assessment Report (15.05.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Konaseema Institute of Medical Sciences & Research Foundation, Amalapuram for purpose of Recognition of MD(General Medicine) qualfication against increased intake from 06 to 08 seats granted by Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada, Andhra Pradesh.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (15.05.2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Government that MD(General Medicine) qualfication against increased intake from 06 to 08 seats granted by Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada, Andhra Pradesh in respect of students being trained at Konaseema Institute of Medical Sciences & Research Foundation, Amalapuram be recognized and included in the 1st Schedule to the I.M.C. Act, 1956. The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

#### 43. Jammu University- Renewal of recognition of MS(General Surgery) qualification for 04 seats in respect of students being trained at Acharya Shri Chander College of Medical Sciences, Jammu.

Read: the Assessment Report (30.05.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Acharya Shri Chander College of Medical Sciences, Jammu for purpose of Renewal of recognition of MS(General Surgery) qualification for 04 seats granted by Jammu University.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (30.05.2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Government that the recognition of MS(General Surgery) qualification for 04 seats granted by Jammu University in respect of students being trained at Acharya Shri Chander College of Medical Sciences, Jammu be renewed.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

#### 44. Jammu University- Renewal of recognition of MD(Anaesthesiology) qualification for 04 seats in respect of students being trained at Acharya Shri Chander College of Medical Sciences, Jammu.

Read: the Assessment Report (30.05.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Acharya Shri Chander College of Medical Sciences, Jammu for purpose of Renewal of recognition of MD(Anaesthesiology) qualification for 04 seats granted by Jammu University.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (30.05.2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Government that the recognition of MD(Anaesthesiology) qualification for 04 seats granted by Jammu University in respect of students being trained at Acharya Shri Chander College of Medical Sciences, Jammu be renewed.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course..

#### 45. Jammu University- Renewal of recognition of MD(General Medicine) qualification for 04 seats in respect of students being trained at Acharya Shri Chander College of Medical Sciences, Jammu.

Read: the Assessment Report (30.05.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Acharya Shri Chander College of Medical Sciences, Jammu for purpose of Renewal of recognition of MD(General Medicine) qualification for 04 seats granted by Jammu University.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (30.05.2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Government that the recognition of MD(General Medicine) qualification for 04 seats granted by Jammu University in respect of students being trained at Acharya Shri Chander College of Medical Sciences, Jammu be renewed.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

#### 46. Jammu University- Renewal of recognition of MD(Pathology) qualification for 04 seats in respect of students being trained at Acharya Shri Chander College of Medical Sciences, Jammu.

Read: the Assessment Report (30.05.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Acharya Shri Chander College of Medical Sciences, Jammu for purpose of Renewal of recognition of MD(Pathology) qualification for 04 seats granted by Jammu University.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (30.05.2018) and decided to recommend not to renew the recognition of MD(Pathology) qualification for 04 seats granted by Jammu University in respect of students being trained at Acharya Shri Chander College of Medical Sciences, Jammu because of the following facts:-

- 1. Details of Tutors are not provided in the faculty table.
- 2. Workload of Exfoliative Cytology is not provided.
- 3. Equipment like HPLC are not available.
- 4. Pathological post-mortems are not performed.
- 5. Workload of TT investigation is NIL.
- 6. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the assessment report.

Admissions done (if any) against these seats i.e. 04 seats till renewal of their recognition will be irregular/ illegal and not in accordance with MCI regulations (notified with prior permission of Central Government vide notification dated 21/07/2009) and will not be recognized. As per provisions of the Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000, failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admissions to the concerned Post Graduate Course. This is also clarified in the letter of recognition granted u/s 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956 issued for these seats, which reads as under:

"...the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course."

In case, the college authorities desire to submit compliance, same should be received in this office preferably within four weeks of issue of this letter but definitely, prior to next admission so that the matter of recognition can be finally decided. If no compliance is received within this period or compliance/ compliance verification is found unsatisfactory, it will result in stoppage of admission to the postgraduate course against the above mentioned seats.

#### 47. Jammu University- Renewal of recognition of MD(Radio Diagnosis/ Radiology) qualification for 02 seats in respect of students being trained at Acharya Shri Chander College of Medical Sciences, Jammu.

Read: the Assessment Report (30.05.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Acharya Shri Chander College of Medical Sciences, Jammu for purpose of Renewal of recognition of MD(Radio Diagnosis/Radiology) qualification for 02 seats granted by Jammu University.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (30.05.2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Government that the recognition of MD(Radio Diagnosis/Radiology) qualification for 02 seats granted by Jammu University in respect of students being trained at Acharya Shri Chander College of Medical Sciences, Jammu be renewed.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

#### 48. Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada, Andhra Pradesh-Recognition of MS(Orthopaedics) qualification against increased intake from 04 to 06 seats in respect of students being trained at Maharajah Institute of Medical Sciences, Nellimarella.

Read: the Assessment Report (16.05.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Maharajah Institute of Medical Sciences, Nellimarella for purpose of Recognition of MS(Orthopaedics) qualification against increased intake from 04 to 06 seats granted by Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada, Andhra Pradesh.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (16.05.2018) and decided to recommend not to recognize MS(Orthopaedics) qualification against increased intake from 04 to 06 seats granted by Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada, Andhra Pradesh in respect of students being trained at Maharajah Institute of Medical Sciences, Nellimarella because of the following facts:-

- 1. Joint Replacement facilities (Hip, Knee) are not available.
- 2. Arthroplasty is not provided.
- 3. Physiotherapy, Orthotic facilities are inadequate.
- 4. MRI workload for the whole hospital was only 6 on day of assessment.
- 5. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the assessment report.

Admissions done (if any) against these seats i.e. increased intake from 4 to 6 seats after the first batch appeared in Examination till their recognition will be irregular/

illegal and not in accordance with MCI regulations (notified with prior permission of Central Government vide notification dated 21/07/2009) and will not be recognized. As per provisions of the Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000, failure to seek timely recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the concerned Post Graduate Course. This is also clarified in the letter of permission granted u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 issued for these seats, which reads as under:

"This permission for starting/ increase of seats in the above course and admission of students will be till such time the first batch of students admitted against the above course appears for the first final examination in the subject."

In case, the college authorities desire to submit compliance, same should be received in this office preferably within four weeks of issue of this letter but definitely, prior to next admission so that the matter of recognition can be finally decided. If no compliance is received within this period or compliance/ compliance verification is found unsatisfactory, it will result in stoppage of admission to the postgraduate course against the above mentioned seats.

#### 49. Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada, Andhra Pradesh-Renewal of recognition of MD/MS(OBG) qualification for 03 seats in respect of students being trained at Dr. Pinnammaneni Siddhartha Institute of Medical Sciences & Research Foundation, Chinnaoutpalli.

Read: the Assessment Report (15.05.2018) on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities available at Dr. Pinnammaneni Siddhartha Institute of Medical Sciences & Research Foundation, Chinnaoutpalli for purpose of Renewal of recognition of MD/MS(OBG) qualification for 03 seats granted by Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada, Andhra Pradesh.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Assessment Report (15.05.2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Government that the recognition of MD/MS(OBG) qualification for 03 seats granted by Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada, Andhra Pradesh in respect of students being trained at Dr. Pinnammaneni Siddhartha Institute of Medical Sciences & Research Foundation, Chinnaoutpalli be renewed.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

#### 50. <u>Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Bangalore - Recognition of</u> <u>MD(Social & Preventive Medicine / Community Medicine) qualification for 02</u> <u>seats in respect of students being trained at Khaja BandaNawaj Institute of</u> <u>Medical Sciences, Gulbarga.</u>

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment report (14/05/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (December, 2017) and compliance dated 01/03/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Recognition of MD(Social & Preventive Medicine / Community Medicine) qualification for 02 seats at Khaja BandaNawaj Institute of Medical Sciences, Gulbarga granted by Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Bangalore. The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment report (14/05/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (December, 2017) and compliance dated 01/03/2018 submitted by the college authorities and decided to recommend to the Central Government that MD(Social & Preventive Medicine / Community Medicine) qualification for 02 seats granted by Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Bangalore in respect of students being trained at Khaja BandaNawaj Institute of Medical Sciences, Gulbarga be recognized and included in the 1st Schedule to the I.M.C. Act, 1956.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

#### 51. <u>Aryabhatta Knowledge University, Patna - Recognition of DLO in respect of</u> students being trained at Patna Medical College, Patna.

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment report (07/05/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (September, 2017) and compliance dated 11/01/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Recognition of DLO at Patna Medical College, Patna granted by Aryabhatta Knowledge University, Patna.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment report (07/05/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (Sept., 2017) and compliance dated 11/01/2018 submitted by the college authorities and decided to recommend not to recognize DLO at Patna Medical College, Patna granted by Aryabhatta Knowledge University, Patna because of the following facts:-

- 1. Unit I does not have Assoc. Prof.; hence faculty complement is incomplete & it cannot be considered as PG Unit.
- 2. Bed Occupancy on day of assessment is 63.33 %.
- 3. BERA is not available.
- 4. Investigative facilities like Nerve Conduction, EMG are not available.
- 5. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the assessment report.

Admissions done (if any) against these seats after the first batch appeared in Examination till their recognition will be irregular/ illegal and not in accordance with MCI regulations (notified with prior permission of Central Government vide notification dated 21/07/2009) and will not be recognized. As per provisions of the Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000, failure to seek timely recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the concerned Post Graduate Course. This is also clarified in the letter of permission granted u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 issued for these seats, which reads as under:

"This permission for starting/ increase of seats in the above course and admission of students will be till such time the first batch of students admitted against the above course appears for the first final examination in the subject."

In case, the college authorities desire to submit compliance, same should be received in this office preferably within four weeks of issue of this letter but definitely, prior to next admission so that the matter of recognition can be finally decided. If no compliance is received within this period or compliance/ compliance verification is found unsatisfactory, it will result in stoppage of admission to the postgraduate course against the above mentioned seats.

#### 52. <u>Manipal University, Manipal - Recognition of DM(Cardiology) qualfication</u> against increased intake from 02 to 03 seats in respect of students being trained at Kasturba Medical College, Manipal.

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment report (07/05/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (July, 2017) and compliance dated 03/11/2017 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Recognition of DM(Cardiology) qualification against increased intake from 02 to 03 seats at Kasturba Medical College, Manipal granted by Manipal University, Manipal.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment report (07/05/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (July, 2017) and compliance dated 03/11/2017 submitted by the college authorities and decided to recommend to the Central Government that DM(Cardiology) qualfication against increased intake from 02 to 03 seats granted by Manipal University, Manipal in respect of students being trained at Kasturba Medical College, Manipal be recognized and included in the 1st Schedule to the I.M.C. Act, 1956.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

### 53. West Bengal University of Health Sciences, Kolkata - Recognition of MS(OBG) qualification for 3 seats in respect of students being trained at Midnapore Medical College, Midnapore.

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment report (07/05/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (July, 2016 & 07.04.2017) and compliance dated 27/12/2017 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Recognition of MS(OBG) qualification for 3 seats at Midnapore Medical College, Midnapore granted by West Bengal University of Health Sciences, Kolkata.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment report (07/05/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (July, 2016 & 07.04.2017) and compliance dated 27/12/2017 submitted by the college authorities and decided to recommend not to recognize MS(OBG) qualification for 3 seats granted by West Bengal University of Health Sciences, Kolkata in respect of students being trained at Midnapore Medical College, Midnapore because of the following facts:-

- 1. Equipment like Cryocautery, LEEP are not available.
- 2. ART services are not available.
- 3. USG in the department is not functional.
- 4. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the assessment report.

Admissions done (if any) against these seats i.e. 03 seats after the first batch appeared in Examination till their recognition will be irregular/ illegal and not in accordance with MCI regulations (notified with prior permission of Central Government vide notification dated 21/07/2009) and will not be recognized. As per provisions of the Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000, failure to seek timely recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the

concerned Post Graduate Course. This is also clarified in the letter of permission granted u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 issued for these seats, which reads as under:

"This permission for starting/ increase of seats in the above course and admission of students will be till such time the first batch of students admitted against the above course appears for the first final examination in the subject."

In case, the college authorities desire to submit compliance, same should be received in this office preferably within four weeks of issue of this letter but definitely, prior to next admission so that the matter of recognition can be finally decided. If no compliance is received within this period or compliance/ compliance verification is found unsatisfactory, it will result in stoppage of admission to the postgraduate course against the above mentioned seats.

#### 54. Pt. Ravishankar Shukla University (upto 2008) & Ayush and Health University (from 2009), Raipur - Recognition of MS(General Surgery) qualification against increased intake from 07 to 09 seats in respect of students being trained at Pt. J N M Medical College, Raipur.

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment report (10/05/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (June, 2014, 30.06.2016, 30.03.2017 and 11.09.2017) and compliance dated 02/12/2017 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Recognition of MS(General Surgery) qualification against increased intake from 07 to 09 seats at Pt. J N M Medical College, Raipur granted by Pt. Ravishankar Shukla University (upto 2008) & Ayush and Health University (from 2009), Raipur.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment report (10/05/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (June, 2014, 30.06.2016, 30.03.2017 and 11.09.2017) and compliance dated 02/12/2017 submitted by the college authorities and decided to recommend not to recognize MS(General Surgery) qualification against increased intake from 07 to 09 seats granted by Pt. Ravishankar Shukla University (upto 2008) & Ayush and Health University (from 2009), Raipur in respect of students being trained at Pt. J N M Medical College, Raipur because of the following facts:-

- 1. No faculty/Resident has signed the faculty table.
- 2. Unit 4 has only 2 faculty; hence it cannot be considered as PG Unit.
- 3. There is no Senior Resident in Units 1, 3, 4, 5.
- 4. There were only 2 Major Operations on day of assessment.
- 5. Available faculty on assessment day were only 10 against the requirement of 15.
- 6. Faculty table was not signed by any faculty members.
- 7. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the assessment report.

Admissions done (if any) against these seats i.e. increased intake from 7 to 9 seats after the first batch appeared in Examination till their recognition will be irregular/ illegal and not in accordance with MCI regulations (notified with prior permission of Central Government vide notification dated 21/07/2009) and will not be recognized. As per provisions of the Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000, failure to seek timely recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the concerned Post Graduate Course. This is also clarified in the letter of permission granted u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 issued for these seats, which reads as under:

"This permission for starting/ increase of seats in the above course and admission of students will be till such time the first batch of students admitted against the above course appears for the first final examination in the subject."

In case, the college authorities desire to submit compliance, same should be received in this office preferably within four weeks of issue of this letter but definitely, prior to next admission so that the matter of recognition can be finally decided. If no compliance is received within this period or compliance/ compliance verification is found unsatisfactory, it will result in stoppage of admission to the postgraduate course against the above mentioned seats.

## 55. D.Y. Patil Education Society Deemed University, Kolhapur - Renewal of recognition of MD(Paediatrics) qualification for 3 seats and DCH qualification for 2 seats in respect of students being trained at Dr. D. Y. Patil Medical College, Kolhapur.

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment report (09/05/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (May, 2016) and compliance dated 24/04/2017 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Renewal of recognition of MD(Paediatrics) qualification for 3 seats and DCH qualification for 2 seats at Dr. D. Y. Patil Medical College, Kolhapur granted by D.Y. Patil Education Society Deemed University, Kolhapur.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment report (09/05/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (May, 2016) and compliance dated 24/04/2017 submitted by the college authorities and decided to recommend to the Central Government that the recognition of MD(Paediatrics) qualification for 3 seats and DCH qualification for 2 seats granted by D.Y. Patil Education Society Deemed University, Kolhapur in respect of students being trained at Dr. D. Y. Patil Medical College, Kolhapur be renewed.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

#### 56. <u>Maharaja Krishnakumarsinghji Bhavnagar University, Bhavnagar -</u> <u>Recognition of MD/MS(OBG) qualification against increased intake from 02 to</u> <u>03 seats in respect of students being trained at Government Medical College,</u> <u>Bhavnagar.</u>

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment (05/10/2017) along with the Council Assessor's Report (April, 2016 & 03.03.2017) and compliance dated 15/03/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Recognition of MD/MS(OBG) qualification against increased intake from 02 to 03 seats at Government Medical College, Bhavnagar granted by Maharaja Krishnakumarsinghji Bhavnagar University, Bhavnagar.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment (05/10/2017) along with the Council Assessor's Report (April, 2016 & 03.03.2017) and compliance dated 15/03/2018 submitted by the college authorities and decided to recommend to the Central Government that MD/MS(OBG) qualification against increased intake from 02 to 03 seats granted by Maharaja

Krishnakumarsinghji Bhavnagar University, Bhavnagar in respect of students being trained at Government Medical College, Bhavnagar be recognized and included in the 1st Schedule to the I.M.C. Act, 1956.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

#### 57. West Bengal University of Health Sciences, Kolkata - Recognition of M.Ch (Urology) qualification against increased intake from 1 to 2 seats in respect of students being trained at Nilratan Sircar Medical College, Kolkata.

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment (07/03/2017) along with the Council Assessor's Report (August, 2016) and compliance dated 07/04/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Recognition of M.Ch (Urology) qualification against increased intake from 1 to 2 seats at Nilratan Sircar Medical College, Kolkata granted by West Bengal University of Health Sciences, Kolkata.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment (07/03/2017) along with the Council Assessor's Report (August, 2016) and compliance dated 07/04/2018 submitted by the college authorities and decided to recommend to the Central Government that M.Ch (Urology) qualification against increased intake from 1 to 2 seats granted by West Bengal University of Health Sciences, Kolkata in respect of students being trained at NiIratan Sircar Medical College, Kolkata be recognized and included in the 1st Schedule to the I.M.C. Act, 1956.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

#### 58. <u>Maharashtra University of Health Sciences, Nashik - Recognition of DM</u> (Clinical Haematology) qualification for 2 seats in respect of students being trained at Seth G.S.Medical College& King Edward VII Memorial Hospital, Parel Mumbai..

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (August, 2017) and compliance dated 09/04/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Recognition of DM (Clinical Haematology) qualification for 2 seats at Seth G.S.Medical College& King Edward VII Memorial Hospital, Parel Mumbai granted by Maharashtra University of Health Sciences, Nashik.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (August, 2017) and compliance dated 09/04/2018 submitted by the college authorities and decided to recommend to the Central Government that DM (Clinical Haematology) qualification for 2 seats granted by Maharashtra University of Health Sciences, Nashik in respect of students being trained at Seth G.S.Medical College& King Edward VII Memorial Hospital, Parel Mumbai be recognized and included in the 1st Schedule to the I.M.C. Act, 1956.
The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

### 59. <u>Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Bangalore - Renewal of recognition of MD(Paediatrics) qualification for 02 seats in respect of students being trained at Vijaynagar Institute of Medical Sciences, Bellary.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (July, 2016) and compliance dated 15/03/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Renewal of recognition of MD(Paediatrics) qualification for 02 seats at Vijaynagar Institute of Medical Sciences, Bellary granted by Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Bangalore.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (July, 2016) and decided to recommend to the Central Government that the recognition of MD(Paediatrics) qualification for 02 seats granted by Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Bangalore in respect of students being trained at Vijaynagar Institute of Medical Sciences, Bellary be renewed.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

## 60. <u>Rajasthan University of Health Sciences, Jaipur - Recognition of MD (General Medicine) qualification against increased intake from 10 to 14 seats in respect of students being trained at Dr SN Medical College, Jodhpur.</u>

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment (30/01/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (August, 2016) and compliance dated 02/04/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Recognition of MD (General Medicine) qualification against increased intake from 10 to 14 seats at Dr SN Medical College, Jodhpur granted by Rajasthan University of Health Sciences, Jaipur.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment (30/01/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (August, 2016) and compliance dated 02/04/2018 submitted by the college authorities and decided to recommend to the Central Government that MD (General Medicine) qualification against increased intake from 10 to 14 seats granted by Rajasthan University of Health Sciences, Jaipur in respect of students being trained at Dr SN Medical College, Jodhpur be recognized and included in the 1st Schedule to the I.M.C. Act, 1956.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

### 61. <u>Delhi University, Delhi - Recognition of MD(Paediatrics) qualification against</u> increased intake from 2 to 5 seats in respect of students being trained at Army Hospital Research & Referral, New Delhi.

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment (08/03/2017) along with the Council Assessor's Report (April, 2015 & 16.05.2016) and compliance dated 12/04/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Recognition of MD(Paediatrics) qualification against increased intake from 2 to 5 seats at Army Hospital Research & Referral, New Delhi granted by Delhi University, Delhi.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment (08/03/2017) along with the Council Assessor's Report (April, 2015 & 16.05.2016) and compliance dated 12/04/2018 submitted by the college authorities and decided to verify compliance by way of assessment.

### 62. <u>Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Bangalore - Recognition of MD(DVL) qualification for 02 seats in respect of students being trained at Hassan Institute of Medical Sciences, Hassan.</u>

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment (19/02/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (June, 2017) and compliance dated 19/04/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Recognition of MD(DVL) qualification for 02 seats at Hassan Institute of Medical Sciences, Hassan granted by Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Bangalore.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment (19/02/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (June, 2017) and compliance dated 19/04/2018 submitted by the college authorities and decided to recommend not to recognize MD(DVL) qualification for 02 seats granted by Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Bangalore in respect of students being trained at Hassan Institute of Medical Sciences, Hassan because of the following facts:-

Compliance is not satisfactory.

- 1. Dr. B.C. Ravikumar, Professor is also Director of the Institute. There is no other Professor. Deficiency remains as such. During 2017-18 when one time increase was given without assessment, Dr. B.C. Ravi Kumar was not shown as Director/Dean in his Declaration Form. This information was concealed which amounts to misleading the Council.
- 2. Head of Department Dr. G.S. Asha is Assoc. Prof. which is not permissible. Deficiency remains as such.
- 3. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the assessment report.

Admissions done (if any) against these seats i.e. 02 seats after the first batch appeared in Examination till their recognition will be irregular/ illegal and not in accordance with MCI regulations (notified with prior permission of Central Government vide notification dated 21/07/2009) and will not be recognized. As per provisions of the Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000, failure to seek timely recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the concerned Post Graduate Course. This is also clarified in the letter of permission granted u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 issued for these seats, which reads as under:

"This permission for starting/ increase of seats in the above course and admission of students will be till such time the first batch of students admitted against the above course appears for the first final examination in the subject."

In case, the college authorities desire to submit compliance, same should be received in this office preferably within four weeks of issue of this letter but definitely, prior to next admission so that the matter of recognition can be finally decided. If no compliance is received within this period or compliance/ compliance verification is found unsatisfactory, it will result in stoppage of admission to the postgraduate course against the above mentioned seats.

### 63. <u>Pravara Institute of Medical Sciences, Deemed University - Renewal of</u> recognition of MS(General Surgery) qualification for 2 seats in respect of students being trained at Rural Medical College, Loni.

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment (15/01/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (May, 2017) and compliance dated 23/04/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Renewal of recognition of MS(General Surgery) qualification for 2 seats at Rural Medical College, Loni granted by Pravara Institute of Medical Sciences, Deemed University.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment (15/01/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (May, 2017) and compliance dated 23/04/2018 submitted by the college authorities and decided to recommend not to renew the recognition of MS(General Surgery) qualification for 2 seats granted by Pravara Institute of Medical Sciences, Deemed University in respect of students being trained at Rural Medical College, Loni because of the following facts:-

Compliance is not satisfactory.

- 1. Deficiency of Dr. D.K. Apturkar stays as such. Out of 5 publications quoted no year of publication is given in publication at Sr. No.2 & 3 and same article has been published twice (Sr. No.4-5). His demotion order, fresh joining report and again promotion order from 9.4.2018 and fresh joining report are not attached.
- 2. Deficiency of variance in experience of Dr. Anil N. Sadawarte, Asst. Prof. in 2 assessments remains as such. No retrospective changes to make a person eligible are permissible. If any change has to be made, it has to be prospective only.
- 3. Deficiency of variance in experience of Dr. Sachin K. Deore, Asst. Prof. in 2 assessments remains as such. No retrospective changes to make a person eligible are permissible. If any change has to be made, it has to be prospective only.
- 4. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the assessment report.

Admissions done (if any) against these seats i.e. 02 seats till renewal of their recognition will be irregular/ illegal and not in accordance with MCI regulations (notified with prior permission of Central Government vide notification dated 21/07/2009) and will not be recognized. As per provisions of the Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000, failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admissions to the concerned Post Graduate Course. This is also clarified in the letter of recognition granted u/s 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956 issued for these seats, which reads as under:

"...the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition.

Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course."

In case, the college authorities desire to submit compliance, same should be received in this office preferably within four weeks of issue of this letter but definitely, prior to next admission so that the matter of recognition can be finally decided. If no compliance is received within this period or compliance/ compliance verification is found unsatisfactory, it will result in stoppage of admission to the postgraduate course against the above mentioned seats.

### 64. <u>Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Bangalore - Recognition of</u> <u>MD(Emergency Medicine) qualification for 02 seats in respect of students</u> <u>being trained at M S Ramaiah Medical College, Bangalore.</u>

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment (05/02/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (June, 2017) and compliance dated 02/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Recognition of MD(Emergency Medicine) qualification for 02 seats at M S Ramaiah Medical College, Bangalore granted by Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Bangalore.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment (05/02/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (June, 2017) and compliance dated 02/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities and decided to recommend to the Central Government that MD(Emergency Medicine) qualification for 02 seats granted by Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Bangalore in respect of students being trained at M S Ramaiah Medical College, Bangalore be recognized and included in the 1st Schedule to the I.M.C. Act, 1956.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

### 65. <u>King Georges Medical University, Lucknow - Recognition of</u> <u>MD(Radiodiagnosis) qualification for 2 seats in respect of students being</u> <u>trained at Dr. Ram Manohar Lohia Institute of Medical Sciences,Lucknow.</u>

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment (02/02/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (June, 2017) and compliance dated 28/04/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Recognition of MD(Radiodiagnosis) qualification for 2 seats at Dr. Ram Manohar Lohia Institute of Medical Sciences, Lucknow granted by King Georges Medical University, Lucknow.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment (02/02/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (June, 2017) and compliance dated 28/04/2018 submitted by the college authorities and decided to recommend not to recognize MD(Radiodiagnosis) qualification for 2 seats granted by King Georges Medical University, Lucknow in respect of students being trained at Dr. Ram Manohar Lohia Institute of Medical Sciences, Lucknow because of the following facts:-

Compliance is not satisfactory.

- 1. Deficiency of faculty: (a) Assoc. Prof.: 1.
- 2. Deficiency of Dr. Gaurav Raj, Assoc.Prof. stays as such. He was Asst.Prof. 3 years against the requirement of 4 years when appointed Assoc.Prof. All his publications are in 2017 and 2018 after his promotion.
- 3. Deficiency of Dr. Abhishek Chauhan, Assoc.Prof. stays as such. He was Asst.Prof. for 3 years against the requirement of 4 years when appointed Assoc.Prof. All his publications are after his promotion.
- 4. Deficiency of inadequate experience of Dr. Kuldeep Kumar for the post of Senior Resident remains as it is.
- 5. Deficiency of inadequate experience of Dr. Saurabh Pantola for the post of Senior Resident remains as it is.
- 6. Dr. Sanjeev Kumar, Sr.Resident, was not available on the day of assessment. Hence not verified by the Assessor.
- 7. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the assessment report.

Admissions done (if any) against these seats i.e. 02 seats after the first batch appeared in Examination till their recognition will be irregular/ illegal and not in accordance with MCI regulations (notified with prior permission of Central Government vide notification dated 21/07/2009) and will not be recognized. As per provisions of the Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000, failure to seek timely recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the concerned Post Graduate Course. This is also clarified in the letter of permission granted u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 issued for these seats, which reads as under:

"This permission for starting/ increase of seats in the above course and admission of students will be till such time the first batch of students admitted against the above course appears for the first final examination in the subject."

In case, the college authorities desire to submit compliance, same should be received in this office preferably within four weeks of issue of this letter but definitely, prior to next admission so that the matter of recognition can be finally decided. If no compliance is received within this period or compliance/ compliance verification is found unsatisfactory, it will result in stoppage of admission to the postgraduate course against the above mentioned seats.

### 66. <u>Padmashree Dr. D.Y. Patil University, Navi Mumbai - Recognition of</u> <u>MD(Anaesthesiology) qualification for 4 to 7 seats in respect of students being</u> <u>trained at Padmashree Dr. D.Y.Patil Medical College, Navi Mumbai.</u>

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment (29/01/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (May, 2015) and compliance dated 02/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Recognition of MD(Anaesthesiology) qualification for 4 to 7 seats at Padmashree Dr. D.Y.Patil Medical College, Navi Mumbai granted by Padmashree Dr. D.Y. Patil University, Navi Mumbai.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment (29/01/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (May, 2015) and compliance dated 02/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities and decided to verify compliance by way of Assessment.

### 67. <u>Padmashree Dr. D.Y. Patil University, Navi Mumbai - Recognition of</u> <u>M.Ch.(Paediatrics Surgery) qualification for 01 seat in respect of students</u> <u>being trained at Padmashree Dr. D.Y.Patil Medical College, Navi Mumbai.</u>

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment (05/02/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (July, 2013 21.03.2016 & 05.10.2016) and compliance dated 02/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Recognition of M.Ch.(Paediatrics Surgery) qualification for 01 seat at Padmashree Dr. D.Y.Patil Medical College, Navi Mumbai granted by Padmashree Dr. D.Y. Patil University, Navi Mumbai.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment (05/02/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (July, 2013 21.03.2016 & 05.10.2016) and compliance dated 02/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities and decided to recommend not to recognize M.Ch.(Paediatrics Surgery) qualification for 01 seat granted by Padmashree Dr. D.Y. Patil University, Navi Mumbai in respect of students being trained at Padmashree Dr. D.Y.Patil Medical College, Navi Mumbai because of the following facts:-

- 1. As per report dated 25.01.2018, the department was created on 25.07.2008. Now in the present report this date has been changed to 2006. Such retrospective changes to make a faculty eligible are not permissible.
- 2. Workload of major operation is inadequate. If OT is only once a week and there is only 1 operation on OT day, it cannot be counted as 6 operations per week.
- 3. Experience is granted only from date of issue of first LOP and it cannot be granted from the date of applying for start of the course as has been stated by college authorities.
- 4. Even in the best institutions in the world there cannot be only one death in a year out of 1679 admissions in a department like Paediatrics Surgery. It means no sick children are admitted.
- 5. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the assessment report.

Admissions done (if any) against these seats i.e. 01 seat after the first batch appeared in Examination till their recognition will be irregular/ illegal and not in accordance with MCI regulations (notified with prior permission of Central Government vide notification dated 21/07/2009) and will not be recognized. As per provisions of the Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000, failure to seek timely recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the concerned Post Graduate Course. This is also clarified in the letter of permission granted u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 issued for these seats, which reads as under:

"This permission for starting/ increase of seats in the above course and admission of students will be till such time the first batch of students admitted against the above course appears for the first final examination in the subject."

In case, the college authorities desire to submit compliance, same should be received in this office preferably within four weeks of issue of this letter but definitely, prior to next admission so that the matter of recognition can be finally decided. If no compliance is received within this period or compliance/ compliance verification is found unsatisfactory, it will result in stoppage of admission to the postgraduate course against the above mentioned seats.

Refer to the Ethics Committee.

### 68. Padmashree Dr. D.Y. Patil University, Navi Mumbai - Renewal of recognition of MS(Orthopaedics) qualification for 02 seats & recognition against increased intake from 05 to 08 seats (05 to 06 & 06 to 008) in respect of students being trained at Padmashree Dr. D.Y.Patil Medical College, Navi Mumbai.

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment (29/01/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (June, 2014 for 2 seats (renewal) & 5 to 6 seats and May, 2015 for 6 to 8 seats & 05/06/2015 & 5 to 6 seats and 11.05.2016 & 07.03.2017) and compliance dated 02/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Renewal of recognition of MS(Orthopaedics) qualification for 02 seats & recognition against increased intake from 05 to 08 seats (05 to 06 & 06 to 008) at Padmashree Dr. D.Y.Patil Medical College, Navi Mumbai granted by Padmashree Dr. D.Y. Patil University, Navi Mumbai.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment (29/01/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (June, 2014 for 2 seats (renewal) & 5 to 6 seats and May, 2015 for 6 to 8 seats & 05/06/2015 & 5 to 6 seats and 11.05.2016 & 07.03.2017) and compliance dated 02/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities and decided to verify compliance by way of assessment.

### 69. Padmashree Dr. D.Y. Patil University, Navi Mumbai - Recognition of M.Ch.(Plastic & Reconstructive Surgery) qualification for 01 seat in respect of students being trained at Padmashree Dr. D.Y.Patil Medical College, Navi Mumbai.

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment (23/01/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (July, 2013 & 12.06.2015) and compliance dated 02/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Recognition of M.Ch.(Plastic & Reconstructive Surgery) qualification for 01 seat at Padmashree Dr. D.Y.Patil Medical College, Navi Mumbai granted by Padmashree Dr. D.Y. Patil University, Navi Mumbai.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment (23/01/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (July, 2013 & 12.06.2015) and compliance dated 02/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities and decided to recommend not to recognize M.Ch. (Plastic & Reconstructive Surgery) qualification for 01 seat granted by Padmashree Dr. D.Y. Patil University, Navi Mumbai in respect of students being trained at Padmashree Dr. D.Y.Patil Medical College, Navi Mumbai because of the following facts:-

- 1. As per the earlier report, department was created on 15.07.2009. Now it has been changed to 2004. Such retrospective changes to make a faculty eligible are not permissible. Resultantly, deficiency 1 & 2 stay such.
- 2. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the assessment report.

Admissions done (if any) against these seats i.e. 01 seat after the first batch appeared in Examination till their recognition will be irregular/ illegal and not in accordance with MCI regulations (notified with prior permission of Central Government vide notification dated 21/07/2009) and will not be recognized. As per provisions of the Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000, failure to seek timely recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the concerned Post Graduate Course. This is also clarified in the letter of permission granted u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 issued for these seats, which reads as under:

"This permission for starting/ increase of seats in the above course and admission of students will be till such time the first batch of students admitted against the above course appears for the first final examination in the subject."

In case, the college authorities desire to submit compliance, same should be received in this office preferably within four weeks of issue of this letter but definitely, prior to next admission so that the matter of recognition can be finally decided. If no compliance is received within this period or compliance/ compliance verification is found unsatisfactory, it will result in stoppage of admission to the postgraduate course against the above mentioned seats.

Refer to Ethics Section.

### 70. <u>Padmashree Dr. D.Y. Patil University, Navi Mumbai - Recognition of</u> <u>MD(Emergency Medicine) qualification for 2 in respect of students being</u> <u>trained at Padmashree Dr. D.Y.Patil Medical College, Navi Mumbai.</u>

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment (08/02/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (May, 2015) and compliance dated 02/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Recognition of MD(Emergency Medicine) qualification for 2 seats at Padmashree Dr. D.Y.Patil Medical College, Navi Mumbai granted by Padmashree Dr. D.Y. Patil University, Navi Mumbai.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment (08/02/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (May, 2015) and compliance dated 02/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities and decided to recommend to the Central Government that MD(Emergency Medicine) qualification for 2 seats granted by Padmashree Dr. D.Y. Patil University, Navi Mumbai in respect of students being trained at Padmashree Dr. D.Y.Patil Medical College, Navi Mumbai be recognized and included in the 1st Schedule to the I.M.C. Act, 1956.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

# 71. Padmashree Dr. D.Y. Patil University, Navi Mumbai - Recognition of MS(General surgery) qualification against increased intake from 04 to 06 seats in respect of students being trained at Padmashree Dr. D.Y.Patil Medical College, Navi Mumbai.

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment (02/02/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (May, 2015) and compliance dated 02/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Recognition of MS(General Surgery) qualification against increased intake from 04 to 06 seats at Padmashree Dr. D.Y.Patil Medical College, Navi Mumbai granted by Padmashree Dr. D.Y. Patil University, Navi Mumbai.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment (02/02/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (May, 2015) and compliance dated 02/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities and decided to verify compliance by way of Assessment.

### 72. <u>Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur/ Kerala University -</u> <u>Recognition of DM(Gastroenterology) qualification for 01 seat in respect of</u> <u>students being trained at Government Medical College, Kottayam.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (August, 2016) and compliance dated 09/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Recognition of DM(Gastroenterology) qualification for 01 seat at Government Medical College, Kottayam granted by Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur/ Kerala University.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (August, 2016) and compliance dated 09/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities and decided to recommend to the Central Government that DM(Gastroenterology) qualification for 01 seat granted by Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur/ Kerala University in respect of students being trained at Government Medical College, Kottayam be recognized and included in the 1st Schedule to the I.M.C. Act, 1956.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

### 73. West Bengal University of Health Sciences, Kolkata - Renewal of recognition of DM(Clinical Haematology) qualification for 2 seats in respect of students being trained at Nilratan Sircar Medical College, Kolkata.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (August, 2017) and compliance dated 11/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Renewal of recognition of DM(Clinical Haematology) qualification for 2 seats at Nilratan Sircar Medical College, Kolkata granted by West Bengal University of Health Sciences, Kolkata.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (August, 2017) and decided to recommend to the Central Government that the recognition of DM(Clinical Haematology) qualification for 2 seats granted by West Bengal University of Health Sciences, Kolkata in respect of students being trained at Nilratan Sircar Medical College, Kolkata be renewed.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee further decided that the recognition so granted shall be for a maximum period of 5 years from the date of Notification upon which the Institute shall have to apply for renewal of recognition. Failure to seek timely renewal of recognition as required shall invariably result in stoppage of admission to the Postgraduate Course.

### 74. <u>Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur - Recognition of MS(ENT)</u> <u>qualification for 2 seats in respect of students being trained at Government</u> <u>Medical College, Thrissur.</u>

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment (03/01/2017) along with the Council Assessor's Report (June, 2014) and compliance dated 17/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for

Recognition of MS(ENT) qualification for 2 seats at Government Medical College, Thrissur granted by Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment (03/01/2017) along with the Council Assessor's Report (June, 2014) and compliance dated 17/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities and decided to verify compliance by way of Assessment.

### 75. <u>Maharashtra University of Health Sciences, Nashik - Renewal of recognition</u> of MS(General Surgery) qualification for 3 seats in respect of students being trained at Mahatma Gandhi Institute of Medical Sciences, Sevagram, Wardha.

Read: the Compliance Verification Assessment (05/02/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (August, 2016 & 24.03.2017) and compliance dated 16/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities on the standard of examination and other teaching facilities for Renewal of recognition of MS(General Surgery) qualification for 3 seats at Mahatma Gandhi Institute of Medical Sciences, Sevagram, Wardha granted by Maharashtra University of Health Sciences, Nashik.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Compliance Verification Assessment (05/02/2018) along with the Council Assessor's Report (August, 2016 & 24.03.2017) and compliance dated 16/05/2018 submitted by the college authorities and decided to verify compliance by way of Assessment.

### 76. Recognition of DMRT course in Govt. Medical College, Kozhikode, Kerala

Read: the Central Govt. vide letter No. Z.20015/04/2017-ME.I, dated 15.05.2018 has forwarded copy of letter dated 05.01.2018 received from the Registrar, Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur with regard to recognition of DMRT course.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Central Govt. vide letter No. Z.20015/04/2017-ME.I, dated 15.05.2018 has forwarded copy of letter dated 05.01.2018 received from the Registrar, Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur with regard to recognition of DMRT course and decided that the earlier decision of the Postgraduate Committee taken at its meeting held on 14.11.2017 (reproduced below) is reiterated.

"... The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the representation of Dr. Ayesha Jaleel, Ernakulam, Kerala with regard to recognition of DMRT qualification in respect of students being trained at Govt. Medical College, Kozhikode, Calicut and noted that neither the course was started with the permission from Medical Council of India nor any request for recognition u/s 11(2) was ever made to MCI. The college discontinued the course on its own in 2016. The MCI has no record of any kind regarding this course. Hence, it was decided that the matter cannot be considered.

The Postgraduate Committee further decided to request the Central Govt. to take an appropriate decision in this matter.

### 77. Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur - Recognition of MS(ENT) qualification for 2 seats in respect of students being trained at Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute- Correction reg.

Read: the request dated 24.04.2018 received from the Principal, Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute, Thrissur to make necessary corrections in the Notification and issue recognition of the MS(ENT) from 2014 onwards i.e. from the batch who joined after LOP.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the request dated 24.04.2018 received from the Principal, Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute, Thrissur and decided to recommend to the Central Government that MS(ENT) qualification for 2 seats granted by Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur in respect of students being trained at Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute, Thrissur be recognized from 2014 instead of 2015.

### 78. <u>Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur - Recognition of MS(Orthopaedics) qualification for 2 seats in respect of students being trained at Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute- Correction reg.</u>

Read: the request dated 24.04.2018 received from the Principal, Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute, Thrissur to make necessary corrections in the Notification and issue recognition of the MS(Orthopaedics) from 2014 onwards i.e. from the batch who joined after LOP.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the request dated 24.04.2018 received from the Principal, Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute, Thrissur and decided to recommend to the Central Government that MS(Orthopaedics) qualification for 2 seats granted by Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur in respect of students being trained at Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute, Thrissur be recognized from 2014 instead of 2015

### 79.

### Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur - Recognition of MD(Anaesthesia) qualification for 2 seats in respect of students being trained at Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute- Correction reg.

Read: the request dated 24.04.2018 received from the Principal, Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute, Thrissur to make necessary corrections in the Notification and issue recognition of the MD(Anaesthesiology) from 2014 onwards i.e. from the batch who joined after LOP.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the request dated 24.04.2018 received from the Principal, Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute, Thrissur and decided to recommend to the Central Government that MD(Anaesthesiology) qualification for 2 seats granted by Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur in respect of students being trained at Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute, Thrissur be recognized from 2014 instead of 2015.

### 80. Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada, Andhra Pradesh-Recognition of MD(Forensic Medicine) qualification for 02 seats in respect of students being trained at Medicity Institute of Medical Sciences, Ghanpur.

Read: the representation and legal opinion with regard to Recognition of MD(Forensic Medicine) qualification for 02 seats in respect of students being trained at Medicity Institute of Medical Sciences, Ghanpur granted by Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada, Andhra Pradesh.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the representation and legal opinion regarding recognition of MD(Forensic Medicine) qualification for 02 seats granted by Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada, Andhra Pradesh in respect of students being trained at Medicity Institute of Medical Sciences, Ghanpur and decided that an Assessment without examination be carried out.

#### 81. <u>Re-consider the matter with regard to prior qualification (entry level) for</u> admission in DM (Medical Genetics) course.

Read: the matter alongwith email dated 16.05.2018 received from Dr. Shubha Phadkewith regard to prior qualification (entry level) for admission in DM (Medical Genetics) course.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the matter alongwith email dated 16.05.2018 received from Dr. Shubha Phadke with regard to prior qualification (entry level) for admission in DM (Medical Genetics) course and the PG Committee decided to include MD/MS(OBG) as prior qualification (entry level) along with the MD(General Medicine) & MD(Paediatrics) for admission to the said course.

### 82. <u>Confirming equated teaching designation to the eligible GDMO cadre</u> <u>specialist working at AIIH & PH, Kolkata – Regarding.</u>

Read: the matter with regard to confirming equated teaching designation to the eligible GDMO cadre specialist working at AIIH & PH, Kolkata

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the matter with regard to confirming equated teaching designation to the eligible GDMO cadre specialist working at AIIH & PH, Kolkata and noted that the information received from the institution is incomplete. The institution be asked to provide all experience details of the faculty to be considered for recognition as PG Teachers and for which subject and the number of students they are admitting in each diploma courses.

#### 83. Increase of seats in MS(Ophthalmology) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Ophthalmology) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25/05/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MS(Ophthalmology) course at Alluri Sitarama Raju Academy of Medical Sciences, Eluru, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-2020 from <u>4(Four) to 5(Five)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

#### 84. Increase of seats in MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (28/05/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (28/05/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-2020 from <u>6(Six) to 8(Eight)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

### 85. <u>Amendments in the qualifying criteria and list of enclosures in COA</u> mentioned in application form for starting/ increase of seats in Postgraduate courses – reg.

Read: the matter with regard to Amendments in the qualifying criteria and list of enclosures in COA mentioned in application form for starting/ increase of seats in Postgraduate courses along with the letter dated 25/05/2018 received from the Under Secretary to the Government of India, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, New Delhi

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the matter with regard to Amendments in the qualifying criteria and list of enclosures in COA mentioned in application form for starting/ increase of seats in Postgraduate courses along with the letter dated 25/05/2018 received from the Under Secretary to the Government of India, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, New Delhi and the members of the PG Committee agreed with the suggestions and decided that wide publicity be given to these amendments by sending circular to all institutions, Secretary Medical Education, DME, Universities, State Medical Councils and it should also be displayed prominently on Council website.

The above amendment shall be made applicable for the applications received for Academic Year 2020-21 of which the applications will be received in March-April, 2009.

### 86. Amendment in "The Opening of New or Higher Course of Study or Training (including Post-graduate Course of Study or Training) and increase of Admission Capacity in any Course of Study or Training) Regulations, 2000 – Application Fee and mode of receiving – regarding.

Read: the matter with regard to amendment in "The Opening of New or Higher Course of Study or Training (including Post-graduate Course of Study or Training) and increase of Admission Capacity in any Course of Study or Training) Regulations, 2000 in respect of application fee and mode of receiving along with the letter dated 31/05/2018 received from the Under Secretary, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, New Delhi.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the matter with regard to amendment in "The Opening of New or Higher Course of Study or Training (including Post-graduate Course of Study or Training) and increase of Admission Capacity in any Course of Study or Training) Regulations, 2000 in respect of application fee and mode of receiving along with the letter dated 31/05/2018 received from the Under Secretary, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, New Delhi and it was observed that the Ministry has approved that MCI should process the application if so directed by the Central Govt. Fee structure as Appendix III is also not approved by the Central Govt. The Postgraduate Committee decided that the decision was unanimously taken by General Body and minutes of which were also approved by the Learned Oversight Committee. Hence for any alterations/amendment in the said proposal, it has to be referred back to General Body for its consideration.

### 87. Equivalence between DNB and MD/MS/PG-SS-regarding.

Read: the matter with regard to Equivalence between DNB and MD/MS/PG-SS along with the letter dated 05/03/2018 & 05/06/2018 received from the Under Secretary to the Government of India, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, New Delhi.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the matter with regard to Equivalence between DNB and MD/MS/PG-SS along with the letter dated 05/03/2018 & 05/06/2018 received from the Under Secretary to the Government of India, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, New Delhi and after detailed discussions the Postgraduate Committee perused its earlier decision dated 14.11.2017 which had been taken in the light of discussion with the Oversight Committee in a joint meeting held on 22.9.2017 with the Hon'ble members of the Oversight Committee and representatives of MCI and the decision is reproduced below:

".....The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee reviewed the whole issue of DNB equivalence with MD/MS (earlier notifications, correspondence from Govt.& views of Supreme Court mandated oversight committee). In a meeting with oversight committee on 22-9-2017, it was discussed that it is common observation that DNB candidates trained in non-teaching hospitals need practical experience in medical colleges for improvement in knowledge and skills to come at par with those trained in teaching institutions.

It is also a fact that large majority of specialists working in non-teaching hospitals (irrespective of number of beds) have no teaching experience and they are focused on one particular area which is their field of specialization whereas postgraduate trainees need vider exposure. At the same time most of the consultants are working at multiple hospitals and they are provided an OPD chamber for a few hours on limited weak days. Still more important is the fact that in private hospitals (irrespective of their bed strength) all patients are paid patients and they are paying. They do not allow trainees to handle

them or perform any procedure on them on account of which trainees do not get adequate hands on experience. It will be pertinent to mention here that Medical Council of India does not count private ward beds in teaching institutions as teaching beds.

Fully realising that there is shortage of faculty in newly opened medical institutions, but this aspect alone cannot overweigh the quality of medical teachers to be appointed since that is going to affect the standards of medical education in the country (present and more so in future). After detailed deliberations the Post Graduate Medical Education Committee reiterated its earlier decision dated 10/10/2017 that:

- (I) Those candidates who pass DNB(broad as well as super-speciality courses) from non-teaching institutions be required to work as senior resident for three years in a teaching institution in the department concerned for appointment to the post of Assistant professor.
- (II) They may be considered eligible for appointment to the post of senior resident immediately after passing DNB without asking them to do 3 years junior residency before appointing them as senior resident.

The above decision was referred to the Oversight Committee and the same was approved with appreciation. The decision of the Oversight Committee is reproduced below:

"The Oversight Committee wish to record its appreciation for prompt action on the suggestion made by the OC in respect of equivalence of DNB qualification for faculty post."

The above decision was referred to General Body and after its approval sent to the Central Govt. The same has been referred back giving reference of Oversight Committee letter dated 14.12.2017.

However, in letter dated 16.11.2017 and 19.02.2018 from Secretary, Oversight Committee to Joint Secretary, Govt. of India, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, the Oversight Committee have issued directions contrary to the above mentioned decision. Further, the conditions specified in the above letter in para (b) are impossible for MCI to verify.

The matter is of utmost importance and will have a bearing on the standards of medical education in the country. Hence, it was decided that the Oversight Committee be requested for another joint meeting with representatives of Medical Council of India for a re-discussion on the matter.

### 88. <u>Reference of Sh. Devendra Fadnavis, Hon'ble Chief Minister, Maharashtra</u> regarding flexible conditions for starting DNB courses in Government Medical Colleges – regarding.

Read: the letter dated 26/04/2018 received from the Under Secretary to the Government of India, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, New Delhi forwarding therewith the letter dated 08/03/2018 received from Sh. Devendra Fadnavis, Hon'ble Chief Minister, Maharashtra with regard to flexible conditions for starting DNB courses in Government Medical Colleges.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the letter dated 26/04/2018 received from the Under Secretary to the Government of India, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, New Delhi forwarding therewith the letter dated 08/03/2018 received from Sh. Devendra Fadnavis, Hon'ble Chief Minister, Maharashtra with regard to flexible conditions for starting DNB courses in Government Medical Colleges. The

suggestion that DNB course should be permitted simultaneously with MD/MS in government medical colleges against extra faculty if available in the department.

The PG Committee discussed in detailed and observed that the requirement for PG seats is not only faculty but other facilities like number of units, number of beds and other infrastructure. If an institution has extra faculty and all these other facilities mentioned above, they can easily take more number of MD/MS seats rather than requesting for DNB. Hence the suggestion of simultaneously running both the courses (MD and MS/ DNB) in government medical colleges cannot be accepted.

It will be pertinent to mention here that during the year 2017-18 and 2018-19 one time increase (without inspection) have been given to all government medical colleges across the country who has required faculty and other infrastructure and number of seats have been sanctioned in proportion to that. Hence, it is clear that no college is having extra facilities / faculty against which the DNB seats can be given simultaneously.

#### 89. <u>Anomalies in Feeder courses to Super-Speciality courses.</u>

Read: the E-mail dated 15/05/2018 received from Dr. Kailash Sharma, Director (Academics), TMC and Member, PGME Committee addressed to the President, MCI with regard to Anomalies in Feeder courses to Super-Speciality courses.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the E-mail dated 15/05/2018 received from Dr. Kailash Sharma, Director (Academics), TMC and Member, PGME Committee addressed to the President, MCI with regard to Anomalies in Feeder courses to Super-Speciality courses and the Committee discussed the same in detail and decided that suggestion made by Dr. K. S. Sharma be accepted and the feeder course (entry level) for following DM/M.Ch course should be as reproduced below:-

1	COUNC/		
Sr. No.	Super Speciality Course	Feeder Course	
1	M.Ch Surgical Oncology	MS General Surgery	
2	M.Ch Gynecological Oncology	MD Gynaec	
3	M.Ch Head & Neck Surgery	MS (ENT)	
4	DM Pediatric Oncology	MD Pediatric	
5	DM Interventional Radiology/	MD Radiology	
	Neuro-Radiology		
6	DM Medical Oncology	MD Medicine & MD Radiotherapy	
7	M.Ch. Reproductive Medicine &	MD/MS Obst. & Gynae.	
	Surgery		

The matter may be placed before the General Body of the Council.

### 90. Amendment in Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000 – regarding.

Read: the matter with regard to Amendment in Postgraduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000 with regard to deletion of certain Diploma courses.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided that the above matter be placed before PG Committee as a separate agenda for detailed discussions before taking a decision to delete them.

### 91. Increase of seats in various postgraduate courses at Mahatma Gandhi Medical College and Research Institute, Puducherry under Sri Balaji Vidyapeeth University, Puducherry u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20 and in lieu of surrender of diploma seats.

Read: the matter with regard to Increase of seats in various postgraduate courses at Mahatma Gandhi Medical College and Research Institute, Puducherry under Sri Balaji Vidyapeeth University, Puducherry u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20 and in lieu of surrender of diploma seats.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the matter with regard to increase of seats in various postgraduate courses at Mahatma Gandhi Medical College and Research Institute, Puducherry under Sri Balaji Vidyapeeth University, Puducherry u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20 and in lieu of surrender of diploma seats and noted that the matter pertains to surrender of diploma seats for conversion into degree seats.

The members of the PG Committee observed that institution was running the said Diploma courses with prior permission of the Central Government pursuant to recommendations of MCI upon their application. Further these courses are already recognized u/s 11(2) of IMC Act. Present request is only for surrender of these Recognized Diploma seats in lieu of equal number of Degree seats wherein no additional seat is being granted to the Institute.

In view of above and as per resolution of the General Body dated 23.03.2018 it was decided to recommend that Diploma seats which are recognized, surrendered and deletion of these diplomas are notified by the Central Government be converted into Degree seats as requested by the Institute for the academic year 2019-20 as under:-

Course	Existing Degree seats	Diploma seats	Seats increase in lieu of Diploma
MS(ENT)	2	0 1	2 to 3
MD(DVL)		J 1	4 to 5
MD(Radio-Diagnosis)	6	21	6 to 7
MS(Ophthalmology)	5	21	5 to 6
MD(Paediatrics)	6	2	6 to 8
MS(Orthopaedics)	10	2	10 to 12
MS(OBG)	10	2	10 to 12
MD(Psychiatry)	2	1	2 to 3
MD(Respiratory Medicine)	2	1	2 to 3
MD(Anaesthesiology)	9	2	9 to 11

### 92. Increase of seats in various Postgraduate Courses at Dr.D.Y. Patil Medical College, Hospital and Research Centre, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr.D.Y.Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20 in lieu of surrender of diploma seats.

Read: the matter with regard to Increase of seats in various Postgraduate Courses at Dr.D.Y. Patil Medical College, Hospital and Research Centre, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr.D.Y.Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20 in lieu of surrender of diploma seats.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the matter with regard to Increase of seats in various Postgraduate Courses at Dr.D.Y. Patil Medical College, Hospital and Research Centre, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr.D.Y.Patil

University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20 in lieu of surrender of diploma seats and noted the matter pertains to surrender of diploma seats for conversion into degree seats.

The members of the PG Committee observed that institution was running the said Diploma courses with prior permission of the Central Government pursuant to recommendations of MCI upon their application. Further theses courses are already recognized u/s 11(2) of IMC Act. Present request is only for surrender of these Recognized Diploma seats in lieu of equal number of Degree seats wherein no additional seat is being granted to the Institute.

In view of above and as per resolution of the General Body dated 23.03.2018 it was decided to recommend that diploma seats which are recognized, surrendered and deletion of these diplomas are notified by the Central Government be converted into Degree seats as requested by the Institute for the academic year 2019-20 as under:-

Course Name	Existing Degree seats	Diploma Seats	Seats increase in lieu of Diploma
MD Pathology	10	2	10 to 12
MD Community Medicine	4	2	4 to 6
MD Dermatology, Venereology	7	2	7 to 9
& Leprosy			
MD Respiratory Medicine	6	1	6 to 7
MD Psychiatry	5	1	5 to 6
MS Orthopaedics	9	3	9 to 12
MS Ophthalmology	7	2	7 to 9
MS Otorhinolaryngology	6	1	6 to 7
MD Paediatrics	12	3	12 to 15
MD Radio-diagnosis	12	2	12 to 14
MS Obstetrics & Gynaecology	ollic.	3	11 to 14
MD Anaesthesiology	15	2	15 to 17

Meeting ended with a vote of thanks to the Chair.

(Dr. Rajendra Wabale) Joint Secretary

New Delhi, dated the 12<sup>th</sup> June, 2018

### <u>A P P R O V E D</u>

(Dr. Siri Bhagwan Siwach) Chairman